
O U R  V I S I O N

E v e ry  Home… Every w h e re. With Pride, Passion and Perf o rmance. We create the world’s best home

a ppliances,  w hich  make l i fe  easier a nd m ore enjoyable for  al l  peop le.  Our  goal  is a  Whirlpool

p roduct in every home, every w h e re. We will achieve this  by cre a t i n g :

Pride… in our w ork and each other

Passion… for creating unmatched customer loyalty for our brands

P e rf o rmance… results  that exci te and re w a rd global investors with superior re t u rn s

We bring this  dream to life  through the power of our unique global enterprise and our  outstanding

people… working together… every w h e re .
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( m i ll i ons  of do ll a rs , e xcept per  share data) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 % ch a n ge

Net sales $ 1 0 , 5 1 1 $ 1 0 , 3 2 3 1 . 8 %

C o re earnings, which excludes non-re c u rring items $ 4 0 7 $ 3 1 0 3 1 . 3 %

Per share on a diluted basis $ 5 . 3 5 $ 4 . 0 6

E a rnings from continuing operations $ 3 4 7 $ 3 1 0 1 1 . 9 %

Per share on a diluted basis $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 0 6

Net earn i n g s $ 3 4 7 $ 3 2 5 6 . 8 %

Per share on a diluted basis $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 2 5

Stockholders’ equity $ 1 , 8 6 7 $ 2 , 0 0 1 ( 6 . 7 ) %

Total assets $ 6 , 8 2 6 $ 7 , 9 3 5 ( 1 4 . 0 ) %

R e t u rn on equity 1 7 . 9 % 1 7 . 2 %

R e t u rn on equity excluding non-re c u rring items 1 9 . 9 % 1 6 . 5 %

R e t u rn on assets 4 . 2 % 4 . 6 %

R e t u rn on assets excluding non-re c u rring items 5 . 7 % 4 . 3 %

Book value per share $ 2 4 . 5 5 $ 2 6 . 1 6 ( 6 . 2 ) %

Dividends per share $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6

Average dividend yield 2 . 2 % 2 . 3 %

S h a re price

H i g h $ 7 8 . 2 5 $ 7 5 . 2 5

L o w $ 4 0 . 9 4 $ 4 3 . 6 9

C l o s e $ 6 5 . 0 6 $ 5 5 . 3 8 1 7 . 5 %

Total re t u rn to stockholders (five year annualized) 7 . 9 % ( 1 . 2 ) %

S h a res outstanding (in 000’s ) 7 4 , 4 6 3 7 6 , 0 8 9

Number of stockholders 1 2 , 5 3 1 1 3 , 5 8 4

Number of employees 6 1 , 0 6 6 5 8 , 6 3 0

F I N A N C I A L  S U M M A R Y
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T O  O U R  S T A K E H O L D E R S : Our accom p l i s h m ents in 1999 showed that Wh i rl poo l

Corpora ti on has the gl obal platform and capabilities to produ ce outstanding re su l t s .

We achieved a great deal during the last year as our operating results by nearly every meas-

u re re ach ed record level s . Our core earn i n gs per share , wh i ch exclu des non - rec u rri n g

i tem s , grew 32 percen t . Our com p a ny also finished 1999 by po s ting ye a r- over- year core

e a rn i n gs - per- s h a re growth of m ore than 20 percent for 13 con s ec utive qu a rters . As

reported , revenue growth amounted to 2 percen t , as sales cl i m bed to $10.5 bi ll i on . Yet ,

wi t h o ut the impact of c u rrency tra n s l a ti ons that redu ced revenues by $920 mill i on , rev-

enues would have grown 11 percent.

The nu m bers also dem on s tra te that our unit sales are fundamen t a lly repre s en-

t a tive of our growth around the worl d .

Those strong re sults con ti nue to be driven by our unmatch ed gl obal po s i ti on ,

wh i ch is bo l s tered by capabi l i ties to meet con su m er needs with unique produ ct and servi ce

s o luti ons under our leading brand names in every major market around the worl d .

Im port a n t ly, our perform a n ce was driven by balanced con tri buti ons from every

s ector of our gl obal bu s i n e s s . North Am erica and Eu rope both del ivered record levels of

sales and earn i n gs . Our stra tegic inve s tm ents and businesses in Asia re ach ed opera ti n g

prof i t a bi l i ty in all four qu a rters of 1 9 9 9 . Our market - l e ading Latin Am erican business con-

tri buted solid re sults in the face of a ch a ll en ging econ omic envi ron m en t . Im port a n t ly, i n

L a tin Am erica we began to see meaningful improvem ents in econ omic and indu s try con-

d i ti ons du ring the third and fo u rth qu a rters .

As we look to 2000 and beyon d , we firm ly bel i eve that our com p a ny has three

f u n d a m ental stra tegic platforms that wi ll en a ble us to sustain del ivery of s i gnificant and

con s i s tent progress in earn i n gs perform a n ce and va lue cre a ti on for our stakeh o l ders .

Taken together, these platform capabilities produce a distinctive competitive advantage in

our global industry and support our vision of Every Home… Everywhere.

• Unique global scope, reach and structure

• Unique global execution and operating capabilities

• Unique global brand value creating strategic platform

Let me elaborate:

Unique Global Structure – Today Whirlpool Corporation is the world's leading

manufacturer and marketer of major home appliances and consumer solutions. We spent

the decade of the ’90s transforming from a company largely focused on the United States

to an en terprise tod ay that is 40 percent larger in gl obal market share than our cl o s e s t

com peti tor. This powerful gl obal stru ctu re and re ach en a ble us to serve con su m ers wi t h

excepti onal brands in every part of the world – and provi de us with unsu rp a s s ed oppor-

tunities for future growth.

C H A I R M A N ’ S  L E T T E R

9 7 9 8 9 9

$ 2 . 9 9

$ 4 . 0 6

$ 5 . 3 5

C o re  E a rn i n gs  P e r  S h a re
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Because of this gl obal business platform , our focus and opportu n i ties are not

l i m i ted to the $24 bi ll i on U. S .a pp l i a n ce bu s i n e s s , wh ere we have the No. 1 market po s i-

ti on . We are equ a lly ded i c a ted to building our share of the $70 bi ll i on worl dwi de con-

sumer appliance market – that, within the decade, will swell to $120 billion. Importantly,

trend lines show that the con su m er app l i a n ce markets out s i de of the U. S . wi ll expand at

t wi ce the pace of the North Am erican market by 2010. We plan to build upon our lead in

this exciting global growth environment.

Un i que Exec uti on and Perform a n ce Ca p a b i l i ti e s – We have dem on s tra ted

c a p a bi l i ties to tra n s l a te growth into significant earn i n gs improvem ent thro u gh our

i n tense focus on opera ti onal excell en ce , and to levera ge this capabi l i ty thro u gh o ut our

gl obal opera ti on s . We define opera ti onal excell en ce as our abi l i ty to drive total cost pro-

du ctivi ty,qu a l i ty improvem en t s , working capital and asset managem en t , and gl obal lever-

a ge to assu re that revenue growth tra n s l a tes into con s i s tent and size a ble improvem ent in

e a rn i n gs .E ach of these factors also con tri butes sign i f i c a n t ly to va lue cre a ti on .

This sys tem a tic and disciplined approach is not new at Wh i rl poo l . In fact , we

believe it is one of our unique core competencies.Each year we take operational excellence

to a high er level thro u gh the use and ref i n em ent of gl obal tools and practi ces su ch as Si x

Si gma qu a l i ty, proc u rem ent practi ce s , su pp ly chain and working capital managem en t

processes, product development and design,and the application of information technol-

ogy. Especially important are our e-business capabilities and internet applications which

of fer accel era ted opportu n i ties to build cl o s er rel a ti onships with our su pp l i ers and trade

partners,and consumers.

All of these too l s , processes and approaches have all owed us to del iver total co s t

produ ctivi ty improvem ent in excess of 3 percent gl ob a lly du ring each of the last three

ye a rs . On a com p a ra ble basis, this focus and capabi l i ty has also re su l ted in a 3 percen t a ge

point redu cti on in working capital as a percent of sales and a $233 mill i on redu cti on in sell-

i n g, gen eral and ad m i n i s tra tive ex pen s e , as well as significant improvem ent in our alre ady

l e ading produ ct qu a l i ty du ring the same time fra m e . This high ly disciplined com m i tm en t

to opera ting excell en ce wi ll con ti nue to fuel earn i n gs - per- s h a re ex p a n s i on .

Un i que Gl obal Brand Platform s – We have a solid fo u n d a ti on for del iveri n g

top-line growth and stakeholder value.We believe our company is in position to capitalize

on brand building opportu n i ti e s .D riving our su ccess is our gl obal portfolio of brands –

rei n forced by our rel a ti on s h i p s , and the loya l ty we cre a te , with con su m ers around the

world. Whirlpool is the world’s No. 1 selling appliance brand. Yet… we have many oppor-

tu n i ties to escalate its growth because of our ex ten s ive gl obal business stru ctu re and

re ach . In ad d i ti on , we have strength in the Latin Am erican market wh ere our B ra s tem p

and Co n su l brands are the top two among all app l i a n ce bra n d s . We also have form i d a bl e

brands targeted to specific con su m er market segm en t s , su ch as the upscale Ki tch en Ai d

brand in the U.S. or Bauknecht in parts of Europe. Lastly, our relationship as the key sup-

p l i er in many categories for the Ken m o re brand of Se a rs , Roebu ck and Co. a f fords us

access to  consumers served by this legendary brand and retail giant.

We have dem on s tra ted capabi l i ties to tra n s l a te

growth into significant earn i n gs improvem en t

t h ro u gh our intense focus on opera ting excel-

l en ce , and to levera ge this capabi l i ty thro u gh o ut

our gl obal opera ti on s .

9 7 * 9 8 9 9

$ 5 6 4

$ 6 8 8

$ 8 7 5

O p e r a ti n g  P r o f i t

* o n  a  c o m pa ra b l e  b a s i s
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We understand that brand loyalty extends well beyond products that consumers

buy and use. Loyalty grows from the relationship consumers develop with the total brand

ex peri en ce . Accord i n gly, our stra tegies focus on devel oping unique and innova tive solu-

tions that include, but are not limited to, the product dimension. This approach provides

ample tools to build custom er loya l ty for our bra n ded produ ct s , and con n ects us wi t h

new business opportunities that extend our brands to activities in and around the home.

We also believe that e-business and internet capabilities and possibilities are pro-

viding us with opportu n i ties to adva n ce our gl obal business stra tegy of building loya l

consumers through our brands. For example,we recently announced an effort with Cisco

Sys tems and Sun Mi c ro s ys tems to devel op Wh i rl pool Corpora ti on’s net worked hom e

solutions initiative. This initiative will include a new generation of Whirlpool networked

produ cts and en h a n ced servi ces that we bel i eve wi ll have a profound impact on the ways

consumers work,live,play and learn. We expect to bring the first such products and serv-

ices to the market in the fourth quarter of 2000.

Perform a n ce Goa l s – By com bining our unique gl obal strengths – stru ctu re ,

commitment to operational excellence and focus on brand value creation – we frame the

corporate vision that appears on page 1 of this report.This triad also serves as the founda-

tion for our financial goals that appear on this page and are the basis of the incentive com-

pensation at our company and for our people worldwide.

Our Outlook– We enter 2000 with solid momentum and a positive external and

con su m er app l i a n ce indu s try envi ron m en t . We ex pect that the North Am erican app l i-

a n ce indu s try wi ll del iver the third con s ec utive year of record con su m er sales, i n c re a s i n g

a bo ut 2 to 3 percent from 1999 level s . We fore s ee the Eu ropean indu s try growing 4 to 5

percen t .L a tin Am erican ex p a n s i on wi ll be bet ween 7 and 10 percen t , and Asian market s

in which we operate will improve between 8 and 10 percent over 1999. And, we believe we

will continue to outperform the industry pace in each of these regions.

Our Peop l e – Most import a n t ly, our people share a ded i c a ti on to, and passion

for, our vision and strategies. They are at the heart of everything that we do. Their contri-

butions,and skills have been central to the record-setting achievements of 1999. Today we

a re a very diverse peop l e ; both within our business and ac ross the gl obe . We bel i eve this

diversity brings us unique perspectives and ideas everywhere we operate. In fact,well over

h a l f of our Wh i rl pool assoc i a tes live and work in regi ons out s i de of the Un i ted State s .

Their languages are as varied as the markets and consumers that we serve. Yet, we all share

a common understanding of our vision.

Every Home … Everywhere. With Pride, Passion and Performance.

The con ti nuing com m i tm ent and con tri buti ons of our peop l e , our leadership po s i ti on s

a round the worl d , our track record of del ivering opera ti onal excell en ce , and our incom-

parable global brand strengths give me great confidence in our future.

We thank you for your continuing support.

David R.Whitwam

Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

January 31,2000

Annual financial perf o rmance goals

Sales gro w t h 6-10% per year

E a rnings per share gro w t h 15-20% per year

Net pro d u c t i v i t y 3%+ per year

F ree cash flow 4-5% of sales
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T H E  W H I R L P O O L  P A S S P O R T  T O  E V E R Y  H O M E …  E V E R Y W H E R E

T h roughout 1999, Whirlpool Corporation solidified its leadership position in the global appliance

i n d u s t ry. Our company holds the leading market positions in North America and Latin America,

t h i rd place in Europe and the top spot among We s t e rn companies doing business in Asia.

This leadership results directly from a global business stru c t u re that internally and exter-

nally enables our company to serve consumers with exceptional brands in every part of the world –

and provides the power to make the most of those opport u n i t i e s .

Consider the scope of the worldwide appliance industry. Whirlpool competes in an envi-

ronment made up of more than 235 million major home appliances, worth approximately $70 bil-

lion. In other words, our global market is four times the size of the North American market and it’s

g rowing twice as fast. Only Whirlpool Corporation has the global  abili ty to serve consumers’

needs in and around the home in communities as remarkably diverse as Bombay, Buenos Aire s ,

Berlin and Baltimore .

C e rt a i n l y, in 1999 we displayed the breadth of our reach and a deep re s e rvoir of talent. Our

global stru c t u re allowed us to deliver re c o rd perf o rmance with each of our major regional busi-

nesses contributing.

Whirlpool North America extended its leadership position by posting a fourth consecutive

year of  re c o rd sales and operating profits, as well as ongoing quality and productivity gains. The

e x t r a o rd i n a ry results in North America were also driven by strong consumer acceptance of several

outstanding branded products that were enthusiastically greeted in the market under the umbre l l a

of our W h i r l p o o l and K i t c h e n A i d brands. Our North American plans for 2000 include the intro d u c-

tion of several new-to-the-world consumer solutions, which, when combined with our long-term

brand-building eff o rts, should propel our solid pro g ress in this re g i o n .

Whirlpool Europe also finished 1999 with re c o rds in sales and operating profits, and con-

tinued significant advances in quality levels and pro d u c t i v i t y. Our European business sustained its

s t rong growth of the W h i r l p o o l brand, which remains the largest-selling appliance brand in We s t-

e rn and Central Europe. The company’s position was also elevated in 1999 with growing consumer

demand for new and consumer focused W h i r l p o o l and B a u k n e c h t p roducts. Such new products are

the direct result of our ongoing eff o rt to renew virtually every product platform, based on con-

sumer re s e a rch that spans the continent. Based upon this solid core of consumer-focused activity,

we expect in 2000 to prolong the expansion of our European business.

Whirlpool Latin America furt h e red its leadership posit ion, despite economic troubles in

much of the region, particularly in Brazil. Our Latin American operations delivered a year of stabili-

ty with solid operating profits. Results were driven in large measure by the formidable presence of

the B r a s t e m p and C o n s u l brands, which remain the top choices for  consumers in the re g i o n .

Embraco, our subsidiary that is the world’s leading supplier of hermetic compressors for appli-

ances, also contributed significantly to these gains. We foresee a continuation of the economic

re c o v e ry that began last fall in the Brazilian market.

Whirlpool Asia finished 1999 with re c o rds in sales and operating profits, following five

consecutive quarters of operating profitability in the world’s largest home appliance market. This
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p e rf o rmance improvement was driven by robust growth from the W h i r l p o o l brand across the

region, particularly at Whirlpool India, where the brand remains the top choice of consumers.

Whirlpool Shunde – our microwave oven facility based in Shunde, China – again set an export

re c o rd as they shipped more than one million microwave ovens to our North American and Euro-

pean businesses. Whirlpool Narcissus, our Shanghai, China washing machine facility, also gre w

solidly during 1999. We expect even greater successes in Asia during 2000 and beyond, as the

region accounts for an ever- g rowing portion of our global enterprise.

Top-flight regional  results flow directly from our global stru c t u re that creates value

t h rough the combination of aligned business processes and platforms, powerful, compelling

brands, and people committed to the Whirlpool vision of "Every Home… Every w h e re . "

B U S I N E S S  P L A T F O R M S  A N D  P R O C E S S E S

Behind the scenes, far from the limelight of advertising campaigns and showroom displays, the

Whirlpool global stru c t u re does its work. Our systems and global processes have been established

to speed product development, make purchasing as eff ic ient and cost-effective as possible, and

p romote the rapid availability of information throughout the org a n i z a t i o n .

By working from a global platform, our company can drive key operational init iatives for

maximum impact. This includes the company’s customized Six Sigma methodology, known as

Operational Excellence, which ensures that we consistently improve our quality levels, even as we

lower our costs and shorten cycle times.

By creating bre a k t h rough solutions for our most difficult challenges, Operational Excel-

lence has generated more than $175 million in global manufacturing savings during the last thre e

y e a r s .

Our continuing eff o rts to boost quality and productivity provide evidence of how the glob-

al approach drives results, which are also apparent in our ongoing total-cost productivity cam-

paign and eff o rts to unify globally our information systems.

H o w e v e r, recent product-development advances in our laundry organization offer perh a p s

the best example of how a global stru c t u re creates value. A global washing platform demonstrates

how the right stru c t u re can result  in speedy transfer of leading-edge ideas. As engineers in one

region were developing a new washer design, it became clear to our global product development

managers that gro u n d b reaking work from another part of the world would benefit the project. By

adapting the innovation – through transfer of technology and know-how around the globe – the

p roduct reached the marketplace faster. A new washer to be introduced soon in another emerg i n g

market will also take advantage of this design work. In each case, consumers benefited from a

swift transfer of our best thinking from one hemisphere to another.

This potent approach works by reducing complexity. We want our global processes to

e n s u re that such successes can be repeated time and again.

To w a rd that end, our goal in global product development is to evolve quickly from re g i o n a l

p l a t f o rms to a global platform, while ensuring that we meet the unique needs of consumers in all
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the diverse markets we serve. When the majority of our product platforms depend upon the same

key parts and systems, we can make many next-generation improvements in a fraction of the time

and cost once re q u i red. And this stru c t u re and process also allow us to rapidly migrate innovative

consumer solutions from one part of the world to another. In short, global business processes and

systems serve as the power behind the throne, the latter re p resented by our brands’ leadership

a round the world.

R E A C H I N G  C O N S U M E R S  T H R O U G H  B R A N D S

In every country where we do business, we focus on meeting consumer needs with highly

c redible branded product and service solutions. 

A round the world, our company has an unmatched brand portfolio, which will be gro w i n g

during 2000 and beyond. Whirlpool Corporation was responsible in 1999 for four of the top 10

N o rth American appliance brands, as ranked by consumers. The W h i r l p o o l brand is No. 1 in both

E u rope and India among appliances. And in South America, our B r a s t e m p and C o n s u l brands lead

the market.

Despite these successes, we have no room for complacency. Our company understands

that top-line growth will only follow the integration of alluring communication with superior pro d-

ucts, services and shopping experiences that fully realize a brand’s potential. Our brand eff o rts are

focused on building relationships that will form a basis for long-term consumer loyalty.

That takes significant eff o rt, such as the initiatives underway to elevate Whirlpool Corpo-

r a t i o n ’s brands in each of our regions. In Europe and Latin America, W h i r l p o o l brand advert i s i n g

campaigns are creating new images and definitions of our brands for consumers. In Europe, we

i n t roduced new print and broadcast advertising to build the W h i r l p o o l brand image. In Brazil, a

new campaign featuring the wives of the Amigos, a chart-topping country music group, debuted

during 1999 on behalf of the C o n s u l b r a n d .

In Asia, W h i r l p o o l brand development has expanded into the realm of caring for con-

sumers. For example, as a sign of respect, Whirlpool  service personnel in India offer to re m o v e

their  shoes before entering a home. And in North America, KitchenAid marketers enhanced their

web site so home enthusiasts could build their relationship with the brand through online purc h a s-

ing of portable appliances and other consumer-focused conveniences.

To sustain the growth of our brands, we have embarked upon a mission to understand con-

sumers in new and diff e rent ways. By gathering information and studying consumers at  levels

u n p recedented in this industry we set the stage for developing branded solutions that are not only

unique, but also unforgettable to consumers. 

For example, in Brazi l we continue to build a vast consumer database that feature s

re s e a rch on hundreds of thousands of Brazilian consumers. Working in cooperation with other

leading companies, our Brazilian operation is studying the data to determine unmet needs and

wants that will result in our next generation of products and serv i c e s .

Or consider the Consumer Appliances Service unit of Whirlpool Hong Kong, which under-

stood the frenetic pace of life in the is land’s urban center. Responding to consumer needs, they

i n t roduced S TA R s e rvices such as same-day delivery and installation, evening service and holiday
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d e l i v e ry and installation. They transformed the concept of service by topping the package with an

o ffer for a temporary substitute appliance during re p a i r.

We don’t plan a radical transformation of our world-famous K i t c h e n A i d stand mixer, which

has been a favorite of homemakers for generations. Part ly because of the stand mixer’s sterling

reputation, our re s e a rch has shown that consumers view K i t c h e n A i d in North America as a high

quality choice for  home solutions. During 2000, we will add the K i t c h e n A i d name to a variety of

p roducts that will extend the reach of this highly successful brand.

Memorable brands, innovation and superb quality in products and services are a good

s t a rt toward the growth of consumer loyalty, price premiums and new revenue opport u n i t i e s .

One other component is necessary for our global enterprise to reach its potential.

P E R S O N A L  C O M M I T M E N T

I t ’s  one thing for us to talk about innovation, quality and growth – and it ’s another to

embed these concepts into our approach to life. Around the world, Whirlpool’s people are nourish-

ing personal commitment that aligns our personal and corporate goals.

Take, for example, the assembly-line employees in our Greenville Division who wanted to

get closer to small-appliance consumers. About 25 are staffing a consumer-assistance center that’s

open five days a week to field calls  about K i t c h e n A i d p roducts. They gain insights on the phone

that drive their perf o rmance in assembling products. 

Or consider the case of a technician whose job responsibilities include replacement or

rehabilitation of freezer parts sent back by consumers to our plant in Joinville, Brazil. After re c e i v-

ing a consumer request for a part that was out of production, he went to his mom’s home, re m o v e d

the lock with her permission, brought the piece back to work and shipped it to the consumer. This

type of commitment to a rapid consumer solution poignantly demonstrates the alignment of per-

sonal goals with corporate objectives.  

In another way, numerous Whirlpool people committed during 1999 to something far larg-

er than merely addressing their daily concerns. Whirlpool employees volunteered to help at loca-

tions across North America in the construction of homes through the Habitat for  Humanity

p rogram. Our company also committed to $5 million in W h i r l p o o l brand appliance donations for

Habitat homes.

Global brand power. Global standards and processes. Global commitment. Inside and out-

side of Whirlpool, these concepts combine powerfully to create a passport – built on consumer loy-

alty – that unlocks the door to Every Home… Every w h e re .



Wh i rl p o o l Co rp o ra ti o n
1 99 9 An nual  R ep o rt

2 9

E U R O P E

K E Y  S T A T I S T I C S

- No. 3 position as manufacturer;

No.1 as brand

- $2.5 billion in 1999 sales

- $177 million in operating profit

- Approximately 12,000 employees

P R I M A R Y  M A R K E T S  S E R V E D

Europe, Middle East,Africa, Asia Pacific

B R A N D S

Whirlpool, Bauknecht, Ignis; Laden in France,

KIC in South Africa

P R I N C I P A L  P R O D U C T S

Automatic Dryers,Automatic Washers, Dish-

washers, Freezers, Microwave Ovens, Built-in

Hobs,Built-in Ovens, Free-standing Cookers,

Refrigerators

K E Y

• M A N U F A C T U R I N G

• H E A D Q U A RT E R S

N O R T H  A M E R I C A

K E Y  S T A T I S T I C S

- No. 1 position in the industry

- $6.2 billion in 1999 sales

- $725 million in 1999 operating profit

- Approximately 26,000 employees

P R I M A R Y  M A R K E T S  S E R V E D

United States,Canada and Mexico

B R A N D S

United States:KitchenAid,Whirlpool, Roper

Canada: Inglis,Whirlpool, KitchenAid

Mexico: Whirlpool, Acros, Supermatic, Crolls

P R I N C I P A L  P R O D U C T S

Automatic Dryers,Automatic Washers,

Built-in Ovens,Dehumidifiers, Dishwashers,

Freezers, Ice Makers, Microwave Ovens,

Ranges, Refrigerators, Room Air Conditioners,

Trash Compactors

K E Y

• M A N U F A C T U R I N G

• H E A D Q U A RT E R S

I S I T H E B E •

M O N T M AG N Y •

• C LY D E
F I N D L A Y •

E VA N S V I L L E •
T U L S A •

F O R T  S M I T H •

• M A R I O N

• G R E E N V I L L E

• O X F O R D

M O N T E R R E Y •

M E X I C O  C I T Y •

• R EY N O S A

• P U E B L A
• C E L A Y A

• L A V E RG N E

M I S S I S S AU G A •
B E N T O N  H A R B O R •

• N O R R K Ö P I N G

• N E U N K I RC H E N

• S C H O R N DO R F

• C A L W

• T R E N T O

• P O P RA DA M I E N S •

N A P L E S •

S I E N A •

C A S S I N E T T A •
C O M E R I O •
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A S I A

K E Y  S T A T I S T I C S

- Leader among Western companies,

with No.1 market position in India

- $375 million in 1999 sales

- $13 million in 1999 operating profit

- Approximately 7,000 employees

P R I M A R Y  M A R K E T S  S E R V E D

China, India, Asia Pacific

B R A N D S

Whirlpool, Narcissus,SMC

P R I N C I P A L  P R O D U C T S

Automatic Washers, Microwave Ovens,

Refrigerators

K E Y

• M A N U F A C T U R I N G

• H E A D Q U A RT E R S

L A T I N  A M E R I C A

K E Y  S T A T I S T I C S

- No. 1 market position in the industry

- $1.7 billion in 1999 sales

- $120 million in 1999 operating profit

- Approximately 17,000 employees

P R I M A R Y  M A R K E T S  S E R V E D

Brazil,Argentina, Chile and the other markets

of the Southern Cone

B R A N D S

Whirlpool,Brastemp, Consul, Eslabon de Lujo,

Semer

P R I N C I P A L  P R O D U C T S

Automatic Dryers, Automatic Washers,

Dishwashers, Freezers, Microwave Ovens,

Ranges, Refrigerators, Room Air Conditioners

K E Y

• M A N U F A C T U R I N G

• H E A D Q UA RT E R S

S H A N G H A I •

S Ã O  P A U L O •

R I O  C L A R O •

S H U N D E •

• M A N A U S

• J O I N V I L L E

• S Ã O  B E R N A R D O  D O  C A M P O

• S A N  L U I S

• F A R I DA BA D

• P O N D I C H E R R Y

• P U N E

• D E L H I
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M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

R E S U L T S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S

The consolidated statements of earnings summarize operating results for the last three years. This section
of Management’s Discussion and Analysis highlights the main factors affecting changes in operating
results during the three-year period. 

The company’s investment in its Brazilian subsidiary, Brasmotor S.A. (Brasmotor), is accounted for on a
consolidated basis for the full year 1999 and 1998 and the last two months of 1997. Prior to the consolida-
tion, the Brazilian operations were accounted for on an equity basis.

E A R N I N G S

C o re earnings increased 31% in 1999 while 1998 core earnings increased 37% over 1997. The term “core earn-
ings” refers to earnings from continuing operations excluding the effects of the first quarter 1999 Brazilian
c u rrency devaluation and re s t ructuring and special operating charges re c o rded in 1997.

E a rnings and earnings per share for 1999, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:

( m i ll i o ns  of do ll a rs , except per  sh are data) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

C o re earn i n g s $ 4 0 7 $ 3 1 0 $ 2 2 6
Diluted core earnings per share 5 . 3 5 4 . 0 6 2 . 9 9
E a rnings (loss) from continuing operations 3 4 7 3 1 0 ( 4 6 )
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations 4 . 5 6 4 . 0 6 ( 0 . 6 2 )
Net earnings (loss) 3 4 7 3 2 5 ( 1 5 )
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share 4 . 5 6 4 . 2 5 ( 0 . 2 0 )

E a rnings from continuing operations and net earnings for 1999 were reduced $60 million after-taxes and
minority interests, or $0.79 per diluted share, by the first quart e r ’s Brazilian currency devaluation.

During 1998, the company re c o rded an after-tax gain from discontinued operations of $15 million, or $0.19
per diluted share related to the sale of consumer financing and European inventory financing assets to
Transamerica Distribution Finance Corporation (TDF), concluding a series of transactions to dispose of its
financing business initiated in the fourth quarter of 1997. Over 1998 and 1997, the company re c o rded total
a f t e r-tax gains from discontinued operations of $57 million, or $0.74 per diluted share related to these
t r a n s a c t i o n s .

In 1997, an after-tax and minority interests re s t ructuring charge of $232 million, or $3.07 per diluted share
and an after-tax and minority interests special operating charge of $40 million, or $0.54 per diluted share
w e re incurred to better align the company’s cost stru c t u re within the global home-appliance marketplace.
Discontinued operating results for 1997 were $31 million, or $0.42 per diluted share, including an after- t a x
special operating charge of $22 million, or $0.29 per diluted share, an after-tax gain on business dispositions
of  $42 million or $0.55 per diluted share and discontinued earnings (before special charges) of $11 million or
$0.16 per diluted share. Refer to Notes 4 and 11 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Equity earnings (loss) were $(4) million, $1 million and $67 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997. The decrease fro m
1997 to 1998 was due primarily to the consolidation of Brasmotor starting in the last two months of 1997.

M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S
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N E T  S A L E S

Net sales were $10.5 billion in 1999, a 2% increase over $10.3 billion in 1998. Net sales were $8.6 billion in
1997. The increase in 1999 results was primarily from a 9% increase in unit volumes, partially offset by the
impact of currency fluctuations around the world. Excluding currency fluctuations, sales would have
i n c reased 11% over 1998. The regional trends were as follows:

• N o rth American overall unit volumes were up 12%, with major appliances up 13% in an industry which
was up 11%. This volume increase translated into a 10% increase in net sales. Unit volumes and net sales
w e re up 10% and 6%, re s p e c t i v e l y, in the 1998 versus 1997 comparison.

• E u ropean unit sales increased 7% in an industry which increased 3%, while net sales were up 1% over a
year ago reflecting the impact of currency fluctuations. Excluding the impact of currency fluctuations,
net sales would have increased 6% over 1998. Unit volumes and net sales increased 7% and 4%, re s p e c-
t i v e l y, in the 1998 versus 1997 comparison due to higher volume and improved product mix.

• A weak Brazilian economy in the first half of 1999 and the Brazilian currency devaluation, which occurre d
primarily in the first quart e r, contributed to flat unit sales and a 20% decrease in net sales in Latin Amer-
ica for the year versus 1998.  Net sales adjusted for currency fluctuations increased 16% over 1998.

The increase in 1998 consolidated net sales over 1997 was due primarily to the full year consolidation of
B r a s m o t o r. Excluding the impact of consolidating Brasmotor and currency fluctuations, net sales were up
4% in 1998 over 1997.

G R O S S  M A R G I N

The gross margin percentage increased nearly one percentage point over 1998 to 25.3%, due primarily to
benefits resulting from the re s t ructuring started in 1997 and ongoing productivity improvements from the
c o m p a n y ’s Operational Excellence program. These benefits combined to more than offset a change in the
classification of certain North American sales allowances in 1999 from selling, general and administrative
expenses into net sales. The reclassification reduced the full year gross margin by 0.3 percentage points.
The regions all generated strong improvements during 1999 as North America’s gross margin as a perc e n t-
age of sales, excluding the sales allowance reclassification, increased 0.9 percentage points and Euro p e ,
Brazil and Asia improved 1.2, 1.1 and 4.3 percentage points, re s p e c t i v e l y.

The gross margin percentage improved by nearly one percentage point in 1998 versus 1997. The Nort h
American gross margin percentage improved due to increased volume, productivity improvements and
reduced material costs, partially offset by price deterioration. The European gross margin improved due to
the benefits of re s t ructuring plus manufacturing efficiencies and reduced material costs.

S E L L I N G , G E N E R A L  A N D  A D M I N I S T R A T I V E  E X P E N S E S

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales decreased from 1998 due to impro v e-
ments related to re s t ructuring and a 0.3 percentage points improvement due to the North American sales
allowance reclassification. These improvements were partially offset by $36 million in pre-tax  provisions in
Brazil related to credit risk. The regional trends were as follows:

• N o rth American expenses as a percentage of net sales increased 0.6 percentage points, excluding the
sales allowance reclassification mentioned above, due to a temporary increase in logistics costs and
expenses related to the implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning system.

• E u ropean expenses as a percent of net sales improved by one full percentage point due to reduced costs
mainly from re s t ructuring and further efficiency savings.

• B r a z i l ’s expenses as a percent of net sales improved slightly due to cost reduction eff o rt s .

• A s i a ’s expenses as a percentage of net sales improved 4.5 percentage points due to increased sales and
continued cost reduction eff o rt s .

The improvement of over one percentage point in 1998 versus 1997 was due to re s t ructuring savings and
other cost reduction initiatives, partially offset by pre-tax provisions totaling $28 million in Brazil related to
i n c reased credit risk.
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O T H E R  I N C O M E  A N D  E X P E N S E

Other income (expense) was $237 million unfavorable in 1999 versus 1998 primarily due to the impact fro m
the Brazilian currency devaluation. The Brazilian re a l declined from 1.21 to 1.82 per US Dollar from mid-Jan-
u a ry 1999, when the Brazilian government changed its foreign exchange policy to a floating exchange rate,
to December 31, 1999. The main impact from the devaluation occurred in the first quarter and resulted in a
$146 million pre-tax charge to earnings (Whirlpool’s share after-tax and minority interest was $53 million).
Also included in this category was a $12 million pre-tax mark-to-market charge ($7 million after-tax) re l a t e d
to short term forw a rd contracts purchased to hedge movements in Brazil’s curre n c y. For the full year, fore i g n
exchange losses within the Brazilian operations totalled $169 million pre-tax (Whirlpool’s share after- t a x
and minority interest was $62 million) and charges related to short term forw a rd contracts totalled $23 mil-
lion pre-tax ($14 million after-tax). Interest expense decreased $94 million over 1998, but this impro v e m e n t
was offset by lower interest income. Both of these changes were due to the re s t ructuring of the Brazilian bal-
ance sheet in order to reduce the company’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations.

Other income (expense) for 1998 was largely favorable compared to 1997 primarily due to the inclusion of
the Brazilian operations in the consolidated results for the full year 1998 versus two months in 1997.

I N C O M E  T A X E S

The effective tax rate for continuing operations was 37% in 1999 (adjusted for the effect of the Brazilian
c u rrency devaluation), the same as 1998, and 44% in 1997 (adjusted for re s t ructuring and other special
operating charges). Including the Brazilian currency devaluation, the effective tax rate for 1999 was 38%.
The decrease from 1997 to 1998 was due to the impact of consolidating Brasmotor, the recognition of cer-
tain tax benefits in Europe and Brazil, and the lower impact of permanent tax diff e rences resulting fro m
higher earnings. Including re s t ructuring and other special operating charges, the effective tax benefit rate
for 1997 was 5%.

C A S H  F L O W S

The statements of cash flows from continuing operations reflect the changes in cash and equivalents for
the last three years by classifying transactions into three major categories: operating, investing and financ-
ing activities.

O P E R A T I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

The company’s main source of liquidity is cash from operating activities consisting of net earnings fro m
operations adjusted for non-cash operating items such as depreciation and currency translation adjust-
ments and changes in operating assets and liabilities such as receivables, inventories and payables.

Cash provided by operating activities totalled $801 million versus $763 million in 1998. Cash provided by
operations was $593 million in 1997. The increase  in 1998 from 1997 was primarily due to higher earn i n g s ,
p a rtially offset by spending for re s t ructuring. 

I N V E S T I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

The principal re c u rring investing activities are pro p e rty additions. Net pro p e rty additions for continuing
operations were $437 million, $523 million and $378 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997. The increased spending
in 1998 over the 1999 and 1997 levels, was primarily due to significant expenditures in Brazil for pro d u c t
renewals, more efficient production methods and equipment replacement for normal wear and tear.

Refer to Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for discussion of business disposi-
tions and acquisitions during the last three years.
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F I N A N C I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

Dividends to stockholders totalled $103 million, $102 million and $102 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

The company’s net borrowings decreased by $324 million in 1999, excluding the effect of currency fluctua-
tions. All of the reduction was in shorter term notes payable and funded through cash generated from oper-
ations and existing cash balances in Brazil.

The company’s net borrowings decreased by $423 million in 1998, excluding the effect of currency fluctua-
tions, resulting primarily from proceeds related to the Whirlpool Financial Corporation (WFC) asset sales.
Also during 1998, the company redeemed $40 million of WFC pre f e rred stock.

F I N A N C I A L  C O N D I T I O N  A N D  O T H E R  M A T T E R S

The financial position of the company remains strong as evidenced by the December 31, 1999 balance sheet.
The company’s total assets were $6.8 billion and stockholders’ equity was $1.9 billion at the end of 1999
versus $7.9 and $2.0 billion respectively at the end of 1998. The decreases from 1998 were due primarily to
the impact of the Brazilian currency devaluation and the weakening of the euro .

The overall debt to invested capital ratio (debt ratio) of 37.7% was down from 43.5% in 1998 due primarily to
lower borrowings which were reduced by cash generated from operations and existing cash balances in
Brazil. The company’s debt continues to be rated investment grade by Moody’s Investors Service Inc.
(Baa1), Standard and Poor’s (BBB+) and Duff & Phelps (A-).

The company has external sources of capital available and believes it has adequate financial re s o u rces and
liquidity to meet anticipated business needs and to fund future growth opportunities such as new pro d-
ucts, acquisitions and joint venture s .

On January 7, 2000, the company completed its tender offer for the outstanding publicly traded shares in
Brazil of its subsidiaries Brasmotor and Multibrás S.A. Eletrodomesticos (Multibrás). In completing the
o ff e r, the company purchased additional shares of Brasmotor and Multibrás for $283 million. With this addi-
tional investment, the company’s equity interest in its Brazilian subsidiaries increased from appro x i m a t e l y
55% to approximately 87%.

On March, 1, 1999, the company announced that its Board of Directors approved the re p u rchase of up to
$250 million of the company’s outstanding shares of common stock. The shares are to be purchased on the
open market and through privately negotiated sales as the company deems appropriate. Through Decem-
ber 31, 1999, the company had re p u rchased 2,662,100 shares at a cost of $167 million.

The company re c o rded $58 million pre-tax of re c o v e red Brazilian sales taxes paid in prior years during 1999.
This re c o v e ry of taxes paid under a Brazilian law, which was successfully challenged in the courts, is sub-
stantially complete. The company received $42 million of pre-tax benefits from a Brazilian govern m e n t
e x p o rt incentive (Befiex) re c o rded in 1998. In 1997, the company re c o rded $34 million in Befiex and other
tax benefits. The Befiex program ended in mid-July 1998.

In December 1996, a favorable decision was obtained by Multibrás and Embraco with respect to additional
e x p o rt incentives in connection with the Befiex program. In April 1997, Multibrás and Embraco submitted
t a x - c redit claims for about 447 million re a i s (equivalent to US$440 million as of December 1996) relating to
the favorable decision for exports from July 1988 through December 1996. This amount is impacted by
exchange rate fluctuations, offset by accrued interest. The Brazilian court must render a final decision on
the amount, timing and payment method of any final award. The company has not recognized any income
relating to the claims involving sales prior to 1997 because the timing and payment amount of such claims
is uncert a i n .

M A R K E T  R I S K

The company is exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, domestic and for-
eign interest rates, and commodity prices, which can impact its operating results and overall financial con-
dition. The company manages its exposure to these market risks through its operating and financing
activities and, when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments. Derivative
financial instruments are viewed as risk management tools and are not used for speculation or for trading
purposes. Derivative financial instruments are entered into with a diversified group of investment grade
c o u n t e r p a rties to reduce the company’s exposure to nonperf o rmance on such instru m e n t s .
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M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

The company manages a portfolio of domestic and cross currency interest rate swaps that serve to eff e c-
tively convert U.S. Dollar (USD) denominated debt into that of various European currencies. Such local
c u rrency denominated debt serves as an effective hedge against the European cash flows and net assets
that exist today and that are expected to be generated by the European business over time. (Refer to
Notes 1 and 8 for the accounting treatment for, and a detailed description of, these instruments.) Domestic
and cross currency interest rate swaps in this  portfolio are sensitive to changes in foreign curre n c y
exchange rates and interest rates. As of December 31, 1999, a ten percent appreciation of the USD versus
the European currencies alone would have resulted in an incremental unrealized gain on these contracts
of $41 million. The converse event would have resulted in an incremental unrealized loss on these con-
tracts of $47 million. As of December 31, 1999, a ten percent favorable shift in interest rates alone to each
swap would have resulted in an incremental unrealized gain of $10 million. The converse event would
have resulted in an incremental unrealized loss of $10 million.

The company uses foreign currency forw a rd contracts and options from time to time to hedge the price risk
associated with firmly committed and forecasted cro s s - b o rder payments and receipts related to its ongo-
ing business and operational financing activities. In addition, in 1999 the company began hedging the U.S.
dollar debt of its subsidiaries in Brazil by entering into forw a rd contracts to reduce the company’s exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations. The value of these contracts moves in a direction opposite to that of the
transaction being hedged, thus eliminating the price risk associated with changes in market prices. Fore i g n
c u rrency contracts are sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. At December 31, 1999, a ten
p e rcent unfavorable exchange rate movement in the company’s portfolio of foreign currency forw a rd con-
tracts would have resulted in an incremental unrealized loss of $69 million while a ten percent favorable
shift would have resulted in an incremental unrealized gain of $68 million. Consistent with the use of these
contracts, such unrealized losses or gains would be offset by corresponding gains or losses, re s p e c t i v e l y, in
the re m e a s u rement of the underlying transactions. The company had an outstanding option to buy Brazil-
ian re a i s for USD at December 31, 1999. A ten percent increase in the exchange rate would have resulted in
an incremental unrealized gain of $10 million while a ten percent decrease would have no financial impact.

The company manages a portfolio of domestic interest rate swap contracts that serve to effectively convert
l o n g - t e rm, fixed rate USD-denominated debt into floating rate LIBOR-based debt. The company also uses
commodity swap contracts to hedge the price risk associated with firmly committed and forecasted com-
modities purchases which are not hedged by contractual means directly with suppliers. As of December 31,
1999, a ten percent increase or decrease in interest rates would not have resulted in a material gain or loss.
A ten percent shift in copper and aluminum prices would have resulted in an incremental $2 million gain or
$2 million loss.

B r a s m o t o r ’s long-term debt carries a floating interest rate that periodically reprices resulting in the carry-
ing value approximating the fair value. As of December 31, 1999, a ten percent increase or decrease in inter-
est rates would not have resulted in a material gain or loss.

The company’s sensitivity analysis reflects the effects of changes in market risk but does not factor in
potential business risks.

E U R O  C U R R E N C Y  C O N V E R S I O N

On January 1, 1999, eleven member nations of the European Union began the conversion to a common cur-
re n c y, the “euro.” The company has significant manufacturing operations and sales in these countries. The
i n t roduction of the euro has eliminated transaction gains and losses within participating countries and
t h e re currently has not been any significant impact on operating results from the change over to the euro .

Prices to customers may converge throughout the affected countries, although the company believes that
in recent years competitive pre s s u res have to some extent eliminated price diff e rences solely caused by the
lack of price transpare n c y.
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I n t e rnal computer system and business processes will need to be changed to accommodate the new cur-
re n c y. The company has established a cross-functional team, guided by an executive-level steering commit-
tee, to address these issues. It currently plans to make changes in two phases. In the first phase, from 1999
to 2001, the company will have the capability to bill customers and pay suppliers in euro, but will continue
to maintain its accounts in the national currencies. In 2002, all remaining operational and financial systems
will be converted to the euro. The cost of the first phase is not material; the cost of the second phase has
not been estimated at this time.

Operating efficiencies should ultimately result from reduction of the complexity of doing business in multi-
ple currencies. No estimate of these efficiencies has been made.

Y E A R  2 0 0 0

The company completed its Year 2000 readiness initiatives and did not experience any significant pro b-
lems at the beginning of 2000. The company does not anticipate any adverse business effects related to
this issue.

The company incurred approximately $21 million in cumulative costs of projects dedicated solely to Ye a r
2000 re m e d i a t i o n .

F O R W A R D - L O O K I N G  S T A T E M E N T S

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forw a rd-looking statements
made by or on behalf of the company. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other sections of this
re p o rt may contain forw a rd-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events
and financial perf o rm a n c e .

C e rtain statements contained in this annual re p o rt and other written and oral statements made from time
to time by the company do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. As such, they are considered “for-
w a rd-looking statements” which provide current expectations or forecasts of future events. Such state-
ments can be identified by the use of terminology such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may,” “could,” “possible,” “plan,” “project,” “will,” “forecast,” and similar words or expre s-
sions. The company’s forw a rd-looking statements generally relate to its growth strategies, financial
results, product development, and sales eff o rts. These forw a rd-looking statements should be considere d
with the understanding that such statements involve a variety of risks and uncertainties, known and
unknown, and may be affected by inaccurate assumptions. Consequently, no forw a rd-looking statement
can be guaranteed and actual results may vary materially.

Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the company’s forw a rd-looking state-
ments. Among these factors are: (1) competitive pre s s u re to reduce prices; (2) the ability to gain or main-
tain market share in an intensely competitive global market; (3) the success of our global strategy to
develop brand diff e rentiation and brand loyalty; (4) our ability to control operating and selling costs and to
maintain profit margins during industry downturns; (5) the success of our Brazilian businesses operating in
a challenging and volatile environment; (6) continuation of our strong relationship with Sears, Roebuck and
Co. in North America which accounted for approximately 18% of our consolidated net sales of $10.5 billion
in 1999; (7) currency exchange rate fluctuations in Latin America, Europe, and Asia that could affect our con-
solidated balance sheet and income statement; and (8) social, economic, and political volatility in develop-
ing markets.

The company undertakes no obligation to update every forw a rd-looking statement, and investors are advised
to review disclosures by the company in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. It is not
possible to foresee or identify all factors that could cause actual results to differ from expected or historic
results. There f o re, investors should not consider the foregoing factors to be an exhaustive statement of all
risks, uncertainties, or factors that could potentially cause actual results to diff e r.
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Year en de d Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns of do ll a rs , except pe r share  data) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Net sales $ 1 0 , 5 1 1 $ 1 0 , 3 2 3 $ 8 , 6 1 7

E X P E N S E S

Cost of products sold 7 , 8 5 2 7 , 8 0 5 6 , 6 0 4
Selling, general and administrative 1 , 7 5 3 1 , 7 9 1 1 , 6 2 5
Intangible amort i z a t i o n 3 1 3 9 3 4
R e s t ructuring costs — — 3 4 3

9 , 6 3 6 9 , 6 3 5 8 , 6 0 6

Operating Pro f i t 8 7 5 6 8 8 1 1

O T H E R  I N C O M E  ( E X P E N S E )

I n t e rest and sundry ( 1 9 5 ) 1 3 6 ( 1 4 )
I n t e rest expense ( 1 6 6 ) ( 2 6 0 ) ( 1 6 8 )

E a rnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Other Items 5 1 4 5 6 4 ( 1 7 1 )
Income taxes (benefit) 1 9 7 2 0 9 ( 9 )

E a rnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before
Equity Earnings and Minority Intere s t s 3 1 7 3 5 5 ( 1 6 2 )

Equity in affiliated companies ( 4 ) 1 6 7
Minority intere s t s 3 4 ( 4 6 ) 4 9

E a rnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations 3 4 7 3 1 0 ( 4 6 )

Loss from discontinued operations (less applicable taxes) — — ( 1 1 )
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (less applicable taxes) — 1 5 4 2

Net Earnings (Loss) $ 3 4 7 $ 3 2 5 $ ( 1 5 )

Per share of common stock:
Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 4 . 6 1 $ 4 . 0 9 $ ( 0 . 6 2 )
Basic net earnings (loss) $ 4 . 6 1 $ 4 . 2 9 $ ( 0 . 2 0 )

Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 0 6 $ ( 0 . 6 2 )
Diluted net earnings (loss) $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 2 5 $ ( 0 . 2 0 )

Cash dividends $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6

See notes to consolidated f inancial statements
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Wh i rl p o o l Co rp o ra ti o n
1 9 9 9  An nual  R ep o r t

3 9

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

A S S E T S

C U R R E N T  A S S E T S

Cash and equivalents $ 2 6 1 $ 6 3 6
Trade receivables, less allowances of 1999: $124; 1998: $116 1 , 4 7 7 1 , 7 1 1
I n v e n t o r i e s 1 , 0 6 5 1 , 1 0 0
P repaid expenses and other 2 8 6 2 6 8
D e f e rred income taxes 8 8 1 6 7

Total Current Assets 3 , 1 7 7 3 , 8 8 2

O T H E R  A S S E T S

Investment in affiliated companies 1 1 2 1 0 8
Intangibles, net 7 9 5 9 3 6
D e f e rred income taxes 2 4 7 2 6 2
O t h e r 3 1 7 3 2 9

1 , 4 7 1 1 , 6 3 5
P R O P E R T Y , P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T

L a n d 7 0 7 7
B u i l d i n g s 8 6 3 9 0 0
M a c h i n e ry and equipment 4 , 2 4 9 4 , 5 3 4
Accumulated depre c i a t i o n ( 3 , 0 0 4 ) ( 3 , 0 9 3 )

2 , 1 7 8 2 , 4 1 8

Total Assets $ 6 , 8 2 6 $ 7,935 

L I A B I L I T I E S  A N D  S T O C K H O L D E R S ’ E Q U I T Y

C U R R E N T  L I A B I L I T I E S

Notes payable $ 4 4 4 $ 9 0 5
Accounts payable 1 , 0 8 1 1 , 0 7 9
Employee compensation 3 0 0 2 7 1
A c c rued expenses 8 0 3 8 7 0
R e s t ructuring costs 3 9 1 1 7
C u rrent maturities of long-term debt 2 2 5 2 5

Total Current Liabilities 2 , 8 9 2 3 , 2 6 7

O T H E R  L I A B I L I T I E S

D e f e rred income taxes 1 5 7 1 5 2
Postemployment benefits 6 1 2 6 2 2
Other liabilities 1 6 8 1 9 2
L o n g - t e rm debt 7 1 4 1 , 0 8 7

1 , 6 5 1 2 , 0 5 3

M I N O R I T Y  I N T E R E S T S 4 1 6 6 1 4

S T O C K H O L D E R S ’ E Q U I T Y

Common stock, $1 par value: 250 million shares authorized 8 4 8 3
Paid-in capital 3 7 4 3 2 1
Retained earn i n g s 2 , 2 6 8 2 , 0 2 4
U n e a rned restricted stock ( 6 ) ( 3 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income ( 4 4 3 ) ( 1 8 3 )
Tre a s u ry stock – 9 and 6 million share s at cost in 1999 and 1998 ( 4 1 0 ) ( 2 4 1 )

1 , 8 6 7 2 , 0 0 1

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 6 , 8 2 6 $ 7 , 9 3 5

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Year en de d Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

O P E R A T I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

Net earnings (loss) $ 3 4 7 $ 3 2 5 $ ( 1 5 )
D e p re c i a t i o n 3 8 6 3 9 9 3 2 2
D e f e rred income taxes 2 9 2 6 ( 2 0 8 )
Equity in net (earnings) loss of affiliated companies, 

less dividends re c e i v e d 4 ( 1 ) ( 5 1 )
Gain on business dispositions — ( 2 5 ) ( 7 0 )
P rovision for doubtful accounts 3 7 2 9 8 9
A m o rtization of goodwill 3 1 3 9 3 4
R e s t ructuring charges, net of cash paid ( 7 3 ) ( 9 9 ) 2 6 7
Minority intere s t s ( 3 4 ) 4 6 ( 4 9 )
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of business 

acquisitions and dispositions:
Trade re c e i v a b l e s ( 4 1 ) ( 1 8 4 ) ( 1 4 5 )
I n v e n t o r i e s ( 5 2 ) 7 3 1 7 7
Accounts payable 1 0 6 8 9 2 0
Other - net 6 1 4 6 2 2 2

Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 8 0 1 $ 7 6 3 $ 5 9 3

I N V E S T I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

Net additions to pro p e rt i e s $ ( 4 3 7 ) $ ( 5 2 3 ) $ ( 3 7 8 )
Net change in financing receivables and leases — — 7 0 6
Net assets of discontinued operations — — ( 5 6 2 )
Acquisitions of businesses, less cash acquire d — ( 1 2 1 ) 1 7 9
Net increase in investment in and advances to affiliated companies — — 1 3
Business dispositions — 5 8 7 1 , 0 3 8
O t h e r — — ( 8 )

Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities $ ( 4 3 7 ) $ ( 5 7 ) $ 9 8 8

F I N A N C I N G  A C T I V I T I E S

P roceeds of short - t e rm borro w i n g s $ 1 5 , 4 7 9 $ 1 9 , 1 4 1 $ 3 1 , 4 8 7
Repayments of short - t e rm borro w i n g s ( 1 5 , 8 4 1 ) ( 1 9 , 5 1 9 ) ( 3 2 , 4 3 9 )
P roceeds of long-term debt 1 5 2 2 9 0 1 0 2
Repayments of long-term debt ( 1 7 5 ) ( 3 0 6 ) ( 2 1 1 )
Repayments of non-recourse debt — — ( 8 )
D i v i d e n d s ( 1 0 3 ) ( 1 0 2 ) ( 1 0 2 )
P u rchase of tre a s u ry stock ( 1 6 7 ) — —
Redemption of pre f e rred stock — ( 4 0 ) —
O t h e r 5 9 ( 8 3 ) 4 7

Cash (Used for) Financing Activities $ ( 5 9 6 ) $ ( 6 1 9 ) $ ( 1 , 1 2 4 )

E ffect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents $ ( 1 4 3 ) $ ( 2 9 ) $ ( 8 )

I n c rease (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents $ ( 3 7 5 ) $ 5 8 $ 4 4 9

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Ye a r 6 3 6 5 7 8 1 2 9

Cash and Equivalents at End of Ye a r $ 2 6 1 $ 6 3 6 $ 5 7 8

See notes to consolidated f inancial statements
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Acc u mu l a ted Othe r
Com m on Trea su ry  Stock / Com p reh en s ive Ret a i n e d

( m i ll i ons of do ll a rs ) Stock Pa i d - In Ca p i t a l In com e Ea rn i n gs To t a l

Balances, January 1, 1997 $ 8 1 $ 3 $ ( 7 6 ) $ 1 , 9 1 8 $ 1 , 9 2 6

C o m p rehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) ( 1 5 ) ( 1 5 )
F o reign currency items, 
net of tax (benefit) of $(36) ( 7 3 ) ( 7 3 )

C o m p rehensive income (loss) ( 8 8 )

Common stock issued 1 3 4 3 5
Dividends declared on common stock ( 1 0 2 ) ( 1 0 2 )

Balances, December 31, 1997 $ 8 2 $ 3 7 $ ( 1 4 9 ) $ 1 , 8 0 1 $ 1 , 7 7 1

C o m p rehensive income
Net income 3 2 5 3 2 5
F o reign currency items, 
net of tax (benefit) of $(18) ( 3 4 ) ( 3 4 )

C o m p rehensive income 2 9 1

Common stock issued 1 4 0 4 1
Dividends declared on common stock ( 1 0 2 ) ( 1 0 2 )

Balances, December 31, 1998 $ 8 3 $ 7 7 $ ( 1 8 3 ) $ 2 , 0 2 4 $ 2 , 0 0 1

C o m p rehensive income
Net income 3 4 7 3 4 7
F o reign currency items, 
net of tax (benefit) of $41 ( 2 6 0 ) ( 2 6 0 )

C o m p rehensive income 8 7

Common stock re p u rc h a s e d ( 1 6 7 ) ( 1 6 7 )
Common stock issued 1 4 8 4 9
Dividends declared on common stock ( 1 0 3 ) ( 1 0 3 )

Balances, December 31, 1999 $ 8 4 $ ( 4 2 ) $ ( 4 4 3 ) $ 2 , 2 6 8 $ 1 , 8 6 7

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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N O T E  1  •  S U M M A R Y  O F  P R I N C I P A L  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

N A T U R E  O F  O P E R A T I O N S : Whirlpool Corporation is the world’s leading manufacturer and marketer of
major home appliances. The company manufactures in 13 countries under 11 major brand names and mar-
kets products to distributors and retailers in more than 170 countries.

P R I N C I P L E S  O F  C O N S O L I D A T I O N : The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned
subsidiaries. Investments in affiliated companies are accounted for by the equity method. All interc o m p a n y
transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

In 1997, the company increased its voting ownership to a majority interest in its Brazilian affiliate, Brasmo-
tor S.A. As a result, the Brazilian operations are consolidated as of November 1, 1997. Prior to that date, the
Brazilian operations were accounted for on an equity basis.

D I S C O N T I N U E D  O P E R A T I O N S : In 1997, the company discontinued its financial services business; as a
result, the statement of earnings, balance sheet and cash flow reflect this business as a discontinued oper-
a t i o n .

U S E  O F  E S T I M A T E S : Management is re q u i red to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts re p o rted in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ fro m
those estimates.

R E V E N U E  R E C O G N I T I O N : Sales are re c o rded when product is shipped to distributors or directly to
re t a i l e r s .

C A S H  A N D  E Q U I VA L E N T S : All highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months
or less are considered cash equivalents.

I N V E N T O R I E S : Inventories are stated at first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost, except U.S. production inventories
which are stated at last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost and Brazilian inventories which are stated at average cost.
Costs do not exceed realizable values.

P R O P E R T Y , P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T : P ro p e rt y, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of
plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the
a s s e t s .

I N TA N G I B L E S : The cost of business acquisitions in excess of net tangible assets acquired is amortized on
a straight-line basis principally over 40 years. Non-compete agreements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the agreements. Accumulated amortization totalled $266 million and $258 million at
December 31, 1999 and 1998. Should circumstances indicate the potential impairment of goodwill, the com-
pany would compare the carrying amount against related estimated undiscounted future cash flows to
d e t e rmine if a write-down to market value or discounted cash flow value is re q u i re d .

R E S E A R C H  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O S T S : R e s e a rch and development costs are charged to expense as
i n c u rred. Such costs were $210 million, $209 million and $181 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

A D V E R T I S I N G  C O S T S : A d v e rtising costs are charged to expense as incurred. Such costs from continuing
operations were $164 million, $179 million and $155 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997. 

F O R E I G N  C U R R E N C Y  T R A N S L A T I O N : The functional currency for the company’s  international sub-
sidiaries and affiliates is the local curre n c y. Prior to January 1, 1998, Brazil was considered hyperinflation-
a ry and its results were re m e a s u red into U.S. dollars.

D E R I V A T I V E  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S : The company uses derivative financial instruments to man-
age the economic impact of fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity
prices. To achieve this, the company enters into interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps, for-
eign currency forw a rd contracts and options, and commodity swaps.

The company’s hedging strategy for the foreign currency exchange risk associated with its investment in
E u rope is based on projected foreign currency cash flows over periods up to ten years. The company uses
i n t e rest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps to effectively convert a portion of the company’s U.S.
dollar denominated debt into various European currencies. The company’s investment in Europe and the
f o reign currency portion of these cross currency interest rate swaps are revalued in dollar terms each peri-
od to reflect current foreign currency exchange rates with gains and losses re c o rded in the equity section of
the balance sheet. To the extent that the notional amounts of these contracts exceed the company’s invest-
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ment in Europe, the related mark-to-market gains and losses would be reflected in current earnings. The
net translation loss recognized in other income, including the gains and losses from those contracts not
qualifying as hedges, was $201 million in 1999 primarily due to the Brazilian currency devaluation, and $12
million and $8 million in 1998 and 1997. The amounts receivable from or payable to counterparties to the
swaps, offsetting the gains and losses re c o rded in equity or earnings, are re c o rded in long-term debt. The
company also uses domestic interest rate swaps to manage the duration and interest rate characteristics of
its outstanding debt. The interest component of the swaps, which overlay a portion of the company’s inter-
est payments on outstanding debt, is not carried at fair value in the financial statements. The interest dif-
f e rential paid or received is recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. Gains and losses on the
i n t e rest component of terminated swaps are deferred in noncurrent liabilities and amortized as an adjust-
ment to interest expense over the remaining term of the original swap. In the event of early extinguishment
of debt, any realized or unrealized gains or losses from related swaps would be recognized in income con-
c u rrent with the extinguishment.

The company also uses foreign currency forw a rd contracts to hedge payments due on cross currency inter-
est rate swaps and intercompany loans and, along with foreign currency options, to hedge material pur-
chases, intercompany shipments and other commitments. In addition, the company hedges a portion of its
contractual re q u i rements of certain commodities with commodity swaps. These contracts are not carr i e d
at fair value in the financial statements as the related gains and losses are recognized in the same period
and classified in the same manner as the underlying transactions. Any gains and losses on terminated con-
tracts are deferred in current liabilities until the underlying transactions occur.

The company deals only with investment-grade counterparties to these contracts and monitors its overall
c redit risk and exposure to individual counterparties. The company does not anticipate nonperf o rmance by
any counterparties. The amount of the exposure is generally the unrealized gains in such contracts. The
company does not re q u i re, nor does it post, collateral or security on such contracts.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The Statement re q u i res re c o rding all  derivative instruments as
assets or liabilities , measured at fair value. This standard is effective for all companies for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2000. The company is in the process of evaluating this Statement and does not cur-
rently believe it will have a material impact on the company’s financial position.

The following table provides the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share :

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs , except  per share data) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

E a rnings (loss):
Numerator for earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations $ 3 4 7 $ 3 1 0 $ ( 4 6 )
Numerator for net earnings (loss) per share 3 4 7 3 2 5 ( 1 5 )

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share 7 5 . 2 7 5 . 8 7 4 . 7
E ffect of dilutive employee stock options 0 . 8 0 . 7 —
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share 7 6 . 0 7 6 . 5 7 4 . 7

Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations $ 4 . 6 1 $ 4 . 0 9 $ ( 0 . 6 2 )
Basic net earnings (loss) per share 4 . 6 1 4 . 2 9 ( 0 . 2 0 )

Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 0 6 $ ( 0 . 6 2 )
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share 4 . 5 6 4 . 2 5 ( 0 . 2 0 )

Wh i rl p o o l Co rp o ra ti o n
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N O T E  2  •  S U B S E Q U E N T  E V E N T

On January 7, 2000, the company completed its tender offer for the outstanding publicly traded shares in
Brazil of its subsidiaries Brasmotor S.A. (Brasmotor) and Multibrás S.A. Eletrodomesticos (Multibrás). In
completing the off e r, the company purchased additional shares of Brasmotor and Multibrás for $283 mil-
lion. With this additional investment, the company’s equity interest in its Brazilian subsidiaries incre a s e d
f rom approximately 55% to approximately 87%.

N O T E  3  •  B U S I N E S S  A C Q U I S I T I O N S  A N D  D I S P O S I T I O N S

During 1998, the company purchased a 36% ownership stake in brandwise, LLC,  a newly established e-
c o m m e rce shopping/comparison business. The joint venture will provide consumers with the ability to
p u rchase home accessories on their internet site, brandwise.com. During 1999, the company contributed
an additional $6 million thereby maintaining its 36% ownership.

In September 1998, the company completed a transaction to sell 75% of its majority-owned air conditioning
joint venture in Shenzhen, China, for $13 million, to Electra Consumer Products Ltd., a leading Euro p e a n
m a n u f a c t u rer of air conditioners. Shenzhen Whirlpool Raybo Air-Conditioner Industrial Co. Ltd. was a joint
v e n t u re formed in 1995. After completion of the sale, the company will continue to hold 20% of the joint ven-
t u re. The joint venture will continue to sell products under the W h i r l p o o l brand in China for a period of thre e
years while it introduces the E l e c t r a brand. No significant gain or loss was recognized from this transaction.

During 1998, the company increased its ownership stake in its Brazilian subsidiaries by purchasing $43 mil-
lion of additional share s .

In July 1998, the company purchased the remaining 35% ownership in Shunde SMC Microwave Pro d u c t s
Co., Ltd. (SMC), a Chinese manufacturer and marketer of microwave ovens, for about $60 million in cash.
The company now owns 100% of SMC.

In March 1998, the company increased its majority ownership interest to 80% in Whirlpool Narcissus Co., its
Chinese joint venture that manufactures washing machines, for approximately $12 million in cash.

In November 1997, the company completed the purchase of approximately 33% of the voting shares, as well
as pre f e rred, or non-voting shares of the company’s Brazilian affiliate, Brasmotor, for $217 million. The
s h a res, combined with the existing holdings, gave the company a controlling interest of approximately 66%
of the voting shares of Brasmotor. Brasmotor is the parent company of Multibrás, which has the leading
market share position in Latin America, and Empresa Brasileira de Compre s s o res S.A. (Embraco), the
w o r l d ’s second largest hermetic compressor manufacture r.

In September 1997, the company reached a definitive agreement to sell the inventory, consumer, and inter-
national financing businesses of Whirlpool Financial Corporation (WFC) (refer to Note 4).

The above acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases and their operating results have been consol-
idated with the company’s results since the dates of acquisition. The pro f o rma consolidated operating
results reflecting these acquisitions and dispositions for the full year would not have been materially diff e r-
ent from re p o rted amounts.

N O T E  4  •  D I S C O N T I N U E D  O P E R A T I O N S

In 1997, the company discontinued its financing operations and reached an agreement to sell the majority
of WFC’s assets in a series of transactions. The company completed the following sales in 1997: cert a i n
i n v e n t o ry floor planning financing assets, international factoring assets and certain consumer financing
receivables. The company re c o rded a discontinued pretax gain of $70 million ($42 million after-tax) re l a t e d
to these transactions. A $36 million pretax operating charge ($22 million after-tax) was also re c o rded in
1997 to provide an additional re s e rve for certain retained WFC aerospace assets.

During 1998, the company also sold the following assets which were previously held by WFC: intern a t i o n a l
factoring assets, consumer financing receivable assets, certain aerospace financing assets and the Euro-
pean inventory financing assets. These transactions resulted in a discontinued pretax gain of $25 million
($15 million after-tax), and concluded the series of sales transactions. Over the two years 1998 and 1997,
the company re c o rded total after-tax gains of $57 million or $0.74 per diluted share related to these sale
transactions. 
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N O T E  5  •  I N V E N T O R I E S

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

Finished pro d u c t s $ 9 3 2 $ 9 6 0
Work in pro c e s s 4 8 5 4
Raw materials 2 5 3 2 7 9

1 , 2 3 3 1 , 2 9 3

Less excess of FIFO cost over LIFO cost 1 6 8 1 9 3

Total inventories $ 1 , 0 6 5 $ 1,100 

LIFO inventories re p resent approximately 28% and 23% of total inventories at December 31, 1999 and 1998.

N O T E  6  •  A F F I L I A T E D  C O M P A N I E S

The company has a 49% direct voting interest in a Mexican company (Vi t romatic, S.A. de C.V.) and dire c t
voting interests ranging from 20% to 40% in several other companies principally engaged in the manufac-
t u re or sale of major home appliances or related component parts. Prior to consolidation of the company’s
Brazilian subsidiary for the last two months of 1997 (refer to Note 1), its results were reflected as equity
e a rnings of affiliated companies.

Equity in the net earnings (loss) of affiliated companies, net of related taxes, is as follows:

( m i ll i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Brazilian aff i l i a t e s $ — $ ( 1 ) $ 6 0
Mexican aff i l i a t e 3 1 5
O t h e r ( 7 ) 1 2

Total equity earnings (loss) $ ( 4 ) $ 1 $ 6 7

N O T E  7  •  F I N A N C I N G  A R R A N G E M E N T S

The company enters into and utilizes numerous uncommitted credit lines from banks and other financial
institutions in the normal course of funding of its operations. To ensure that the company has access to
adequate and competitive financing under unusual market conditions, the  company also enters into com-
mitted credit lines backed by formal agreements with counterparties deemed to be reliable. At December
31, 1999, the company had committed credit lines of approximately $919 million, of which $670 million was
available, in place with maturities ranging from one month to four years. Generally, the banks are compen-
sated for their credit lines by a fee and do not re q u i re formal compensating balances.

Notes payable consist of the following:

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

Payable to banks $ 3 5 3 $ 7 3 2
C o m m e rcial paper 8 0 1 5 3
O t h e r 1 1 2 0

Total notes payable $ 4 4 4 $ 9 0 5

The weighted average interest rate on notes payable was 6.86% and 7.60% at December 31, 1999 and 1998.

Although its operating assets have been divested, WFC remains a legal entity with pre f e rred stock arr a n g e-
ments, included within minority interests in the consolidated balance sheet, as follows:

Ma n d a tor y
Nu m ber Fa ce An nu a l Rede m pt i on D a te of

of Sh a re s Va lu e D iv i den d D a te Is su a n ce

Series B 3 5 0 , 0 0 0 $ 1 0 0 $ 6 . 5 5 9 / 1 / 2 0 0 8 8 / 3 1 / 1 9 9 3
Series C 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 $ 1 0 0 $ 6 . 0 9 2 / 1 / 2 0 0 2 1 2 / 2 7 / 1 9 9 6



W h i rl po o l  Co rp o ra ti o n
1 9 9 9  Annual  Re p o r t

4 6

N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

The pre f e rred stockholders are entitled to vote together on a share - f o r- s h a re basis with WFC’s common
s t o c k h o l d e r. Pre f e rred stock dividends are payable quart e r l y. At its option, WFC may redeem the Series B at
any time on or after September 1, 2003 or at any earlier date for Series C. The redemption price for each
series is $100 per share plus any accrued unpaid dividends and the applicable redemption premium if
redeemed early. Commencing September 1, 2003, WFC must pay $1,750,000 per year to a sinking fund for
the benefit of the Series B pre f e rred stockholders, with a final payment of $26,250,000 due on or before Sep-
tember 1, 2008. There is no sinking fund re q u i rement for the Series C pre f e rred stock.

The company and WFC are parties to a support agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, if at the close of any
q u a rter WFC’s net earnings available for fixed charges (as defined) for the preceding twelve months is less
than a stipulated amount, the company is re q u i red to make a cash payment to WFC equal to the insuff i c i e n-
cy within 60 days of the end of the quart e r. The support agreement may be terminated by either WFC or the
company upon 30 days notice provided that certain conditions are met. The company has also agreed to
maintain ownership of at least 70% of WFC’s voting stock. 

L o n g - t e rm debt consists of the following:

Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns  of do ll a rs ) Ma t u ri ty In tere st  Ra te 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

D e b e n t u re s 2008 and 2016 7.8 and 9.1% $ 3 6 8 $ 3 6 8
Senior notes 2000 and 2003 9.0 and 9.5 4 0 0 4 0 0
M e d i u m - t e rm notes 2000 to 2006 8.9 to 9.1 2 1 2 5
M o rtgage notes 2000 to 2012 6.3 to 6.6 6 2 6 4
Brazilian bank note 2000 to 2004 1 2 . 1 9 2 1 3 1
O t h e r 1 3 7 1 6 4

1 , 0 8 0 1 , 1 5 2

Less cross currency interest rate swap adjustments 1 4 1 4 0

Less current maturities 2 2 5 2 5

Total long-term debt, net $ 7 1 4 $ 1 , 0 8 7

Annual maturities of long-term debt in the next five years are $225 million, $108 million, $52 million, $248
million and $48 million. 

The company paid interest, including a portion re c o rded as discontinued operations, on short - t e rm and
l o n g - t e rm debt totaling $151 million, $290 million and $242 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

N O T E  8  •  F A I R  V A L U E  O F  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating fair values of financial instru m e n t s :

C A S H  A N D  E Q U I VA L E N T S  A N D  N O T E S  P A Y A B L E : The carrying amounts approximate fair values.

L O N G - T E R M  D E B T  A N D  W F C  P R E F E R R E D  S T O C K : The fair values are estimated using discounted cash
flow analyses based on incremental borrowing or dividend yield rates for similar types of borrowing or
equity arrangements. The WFC pre f e rred stock carrying amount approximates fair value.

D E R I V A T I V E  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S : The fair values of interest rate swaps, cross currency intere s t
rate swaps, foreign currency forw a rd contracts and option collars and commodity swaps are based on
quoted market prices.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments for which the fair value does not appro x i m a t e
the liability carrying amount are as follows:

1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

Ca rr yi n g Fa i r Ca rr yi n g Fa i r
Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) Am o u n t Va lu e Am o u n t Va lu e

L o n g - t e rm debt (including current port i o n ) $ 1 , 0 8 0 $ 1 , 0 9 8 $ 1 , 1 5 2 $ 1 , 2 5 7
Derivative financial instruments (notional amounts indicated):

Hedges of net investment in Europe including converted debt:
I n t e rest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps
($1,026 million in 1999; $1,182 million in 1998) ( 1 4 1 ) ( 1 0 1 ) ( 4 0 ) ( 7 )
F o reign currency forw a rd contracts
($52 million in 1999; $19 million in 1998) — — — ( 1 )
Domestic interest rate swaps
($120 million in 1999; $120 million in 1998) — ( 1 ) — ( 2 )

Transaction hedges:
F o reign currency forw a rd and option contracts
($751 million in 1999; $424 million in 1998) — 1 2 — ( 9 )
Hedges with commodity swaps
($14 million in 1999; $23 million in 1998) — ( 2 ) — ( 2 )

Total long-term debt $ 9 3 9 $ 1 , 0 0 6 $ 1 , 1 1 2 $ 1 , 2 3 6

At December 31, 1999, interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps effectively converted $626 million
of U.S. dollar denominated debt into European currency denominations ($285 million - German marks, $261
million - French francs, $28 million - Swiss francs, and $52 million - British pound sterling). About 26% of this
c o n v e rted debt had floating rates and 74% had fixed rates. Floating rates received ranged from LIBOR less
.08% to LIBOR, and floating rates paid ranged from local currency LIBOR to local currency LIBOR plus 3.09%.
Fixed  rates received ranged from 5.93% to 7.20%, and fixed rates paid ranged from 5.13% to 7.98%. The
swaps mature within seven years.

At December 31, 1999, one domestic interest rate swap effectively converts $120 million of fixed rate debt
into floating rate debt. Fixed rates received are 6.99%. Floating rates paid were LIBOR. The domestic inter-
est rate swap matures within two years.

F o reign currency forw a rd contracts mature within one day to two years and involve principally Euro p e a n ,
Brazilian and North American currencies. Copper and aluminum commodity swaps mature within two years.

N O T E  9  •  S T O C K H O L D E R S ’ E Q U I T Y

On March, 1, 1999, the company announced that its Board of Directors approved the re p u rchase of up to
$250 million of the company’s outstanding shares of common stock. The shares are to be purchased on the
open market and through privately negotiated sales as the company deems appropriate. Through Decem-
ber 31, 1999, the company had re p u rchased 2,662,100 shares at a cost of $167 million.

In addition to its common stock, the company has 10 million authorized shares of pre f e rred stock (par value
$1 per share), none of which is outstanding.

Consolidated retained earnings at December 31, 1999 included $17 million of equity in undistributed net
e a rnings of affiliated companies.

The cumulative translation component of stockholders' equity re p resents the effect of translating net
assets of the company's international subsidiaries offset by related hedging activity net of tax. Stock
option transactions and restricted stock grants account for the changes in paid-in capital.

One Pre f e rred Stock Purchase Right (Rights) is outstanding for each share of common stock. The Rights,
which expire May 22, 2008, will become exercisable 10 days after a person or group (an Acquiring Person)
has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding com-
mon stock (the Trigger Date) or 10 business days after the commencement, or public disclosure of an inten-
tion to commence, of a tender offer or exchange offer by a person that could result in beneficial ownership
of 15% or more of the outstanding common stock. Each Right entitles the holder to purchase from the com-
pany one one-thousandth of a share of a Junior Participating Pre f e rred Stock, Series B, par value $1.00 per
s h a re, of the company at a price of $300 per one one-thousandth of a Pre f e rred Share subject to adjustment.
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

If a person becomes an Acquiring Person, proper provision shall be made so that each holder of a Right, oth-
er than Rights that are or were beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person (which will thereafter be void),
shall thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of such Right that number of shares of common
stock (or other securities) having at the time of such transaction a market value of two times the exerc i s e
price of the Right. If a person becomes an Acquiring Person and the company is involved in a merger or oth-
er business combination transaction where the company is not the surviving corporation or where common
stock is changed or exchanged or in a transaction or transactions in which 50% or more of its consolidated
assets or earning power are sold, proper provision shall be made so that each holder of a Right (other than
such Acquiring Person) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at the then cur-
rent exercise price of the Right, that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which at
the time of such transaction would have a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. In addi-
tion, if an Acquiring Person, does not have beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the common stock, the
c o m p a n y ’s Board of Directors has the option of exchanging all or part of the Rights for an equal number of
s h a res of common stock in the manner described in the Rights Agre e m e n t .

Prior to the Trigger Date, the Board of Directors of the company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in
p a rt, at a price of $.01 per Right, payable in cash, shares of common stock or any other consideration
deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. Immediately upon action of the Board of Directors ord e r i n g
redemption of the Rights, the ability of holders to exercise the Rights will terminate and such holders will
only be able to receive the redemption price.

Until such time as the Rights become exercisable, the Rights have no voting or dividend privileges and are
attached to, and do not trade separately from, the common stock.

The company covenants and agrees that it will cause to be re s e rved and kept available at all times a suff i-
cient number of shares of Pre f e rred Stock (and following the occurrence of a Triggering Event, shares of com-
mon stock and/or other securities) to permit the exercise in full of all Rights from time to time outstanding.

N O T E  1 0  •  S T O C K  O P T I O N  A N D  I N C E N T I V E  P L A N S

The company’s stock option and incentive plan permits the grant of stock options and other stock award s
covering up to 10.5 million shares to key employees of the company and its subsidiaries, of which 3.2 mil-
lion shares are available for grant at December 31, 1999. The plan authorizes the grant of both incentive and
nonqualified stock options and, furt h e r, authorizes the grant of stock appreciation rights and related sup-
plemental cash payments independently of or with respect to options granted or outstanding. Stock
options generally have 10 year terms, and vest and become fully exercisable over a two to three year period
after date of grant. An Executive Stock Appreciation and Perf o rmance Program (ESAP), a Restricted Stock
Value Program (RSVP), a Career Stock Program (CSP) and a Key Employee Retention Program (KERP) have
been established under the plan. Perf o rmance awards under ESAP, RSVP and KERP are generally earn e d
over multiyear time periods upon the achievement of certain perf o rmance objectives or upon a change in
c o n t rol of the company. CSP awards are earned at specified dates during a part i c i p a n t ’s career with the
company or upon change in control of the company. ESAP awards are payable in cash, common stock, or a
combination thereof when earned. RSVP and KERP grant restricted shares, which may not be sold, trans-
f e rred or encumbered until the restrictions lapse. CSP grants phantom stock awards which are re d e e m a b l e
for shares of the company’s common stock upon the re c i p i e n t ’s re t i rement after attaining age 60 and are
subject to certain noncompetition provisions. Outstanding restricted and phantom shares totalled 847,000
with a weighted-average grant-date fair value of $51.12 per share at December 31, 1999 and 731,000 with a
weighted-average grant-date fair value of $48.06 per share at December 31, 1998. Expenses under the plan
w e re $8 million, $17 million and $21 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

Under the Nonemployee Director Stock Ownership Plan, each nonemployee director is automatically grant-
ed 400 shares of common stock annually and is eligible for a stock option grant of 600 shares if the compa-
ny's earnings meet a prescribed earnings formula. In addition, each nonemployee director is award e d
annually deferred compensation in the form of 400 shares of phantom stock, which is converted into com-
mon stock on a one-for-one basis and paid when the director leaves the Board.  This plan provides for the
grant of up to 300,000 shares as either stock or stock options, of which 189,000 shares are available for
grant at December 31, 1999. The stock options vest and become exercisable six months after date of grant.
T h e re were no significant expenses under this plan for 1999, 1998 or 1997.

The company maintains an employee stock option plan (Part n e r S h a re) that may grant substantially all full-
time U.S. employees a fixed number of stock options that vest over a three year period and may be exer-
cised over a 10 year period. Part n e r S h a re authorizes the grant of up to 2.5 million shares of which 500,000
s h a res are available for grant at December 31, 1999.
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Stock option and incentive plans are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related Interpretations. Generally, no compensa-
tion expense is recognized for stock options with exercise prices equal to the market value of the underlying
s h a res of stock at the date of grant. Compensation expense is recognized for ESAP, RSVP and CSP award s
based on the market value of the underlying shares of stock when the number of shares is determ i n a b l e .

Had the company elected to adopt recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” under which stock options are accounted for at estimated fair value, pro f o rma net earn-
ings (loss) and diluted net earnings (loss) per share would be as follows:

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Net earnings (loss)
As re p o rt e d $ 3 4 7 $ 3 2 5 $ ( 1 5 )
P ro f o rm a 3 3 8 3 1 8 ( 2 1 )

Diluted net earnings (loss) per share
As re p o rt e d $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 2 5 $ ( 0 . 2 0 )
P ro f o rm a 4 . 4 4 4 . 1 6 ( 0 . 2 8 )

The fair value of stock options used to compute pro f o rma net earnings (loss) and diluted net earnings (loss)
per share disclosures is the estimated present value at grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions for 1999, 1998 and 1997: expected volatility factor of .255, .216 and
.183; dividend yield of 2.2%, 2.4% and 2.4%; risk-free interest rate of 6.4%, 4.5% and 5.5% and a weighted-
average expected option life of 5 years for all three years.

A summary of stock option information follows:

1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Wei gh ted Wei gh te d Wei gh ted
Ave r a ge Ave ra ge Aver a ge

D ece m ber  31 Nu m ber E xerc i s e Nu m ber E xerc i s e Nu m be r E xerc i s e
(thousands  of s h a re s , e xcept  per  share data) of Sh a re s Pr i ce of Sh a re s Pri ce of Sh a re s Pr i ce

Outstanding at Jan. 1 4 , 1 2 0 $ 5 0 . 5 9 4 , 2 3 0 $ 4 7 . 0 6 4 , 1 2 7 $ 4 6 . 3 1
G r a n t e d 1 , 6 2 9 5 3 . 1 9 9 1 9 6 1 . 8 3 1 , 3 6 0 4 5 . 7 8
E x e rc i s e d ( 9 6 0 ) 4 6 . 3 5 ( 7 7 0 ) 4 4 . 8 8 ( 8 4 2 ) 3 9 . 8 3
Canceled or expire d ( 1 8 4 ) 5 5 . 3 0 ( 2 5 9 ) 4 9 . 8 1 ( 4 1 5 ) 5 0 . 1 2

Outstanding at Dec. 31 4 , 6 0 5 $ 5 2 . 2 1 4 , 1 2 0 $ 5 0 . 5 9 4 , 2 3 0 $ 4 7 . 0 6

E x e rcisable at Dec. 31 2 , 6 1 1 $ 5 0 . 1 4 2 , 5 3 4 $ 4 7 . 6 5 2 , 3 0 8 $ 4 6 . 4 3

Fair value of options 
granted during the year $ 1 4 . 5 9 $ 1 2 . 6 7 $ 9 . 2 6

The outstanding options at December 31, 1999, had exercise prices ranging from $24.75 to $72.34 and a
weighted-average remaining contractual life of 7.3 years.

N O T E  1 1  •  R E S T R U C T U R I N G  A N D  O T H E R  S P E C I A L  C H A R G E S

During 1997, the company incurred re s t ructuring costs of $343 million ($244 million cash costs and $99 mil-
lion noncash costs) to better align the company’s cost stru c t u re within the global home-appliance market-
place. Pre-tax re s t ructuring charges of $172 million, $101 million, $35 million, $25 million and $10 million
relate to the company’s European, Asian, Latin American, corporate and North American operations,
re s p e c t i v e l y. More than 87% of the cash costs have been paid to date, with the remainder to be paid in 2000.
The re s t ructuring charge includes the elimination of about 7,900 global positions, of which more than 7,300
positions have been eliminated to date. The impact of 1997 re s t ructuring costs after-tax and minority inter-
ests was $232 million or $3.07 per diluted share .

In 1997, the company also recognized special charges of $62 million ($53 million of which affected operating
p rofit), principally due to the adjustment of the carrying value of receivables and inventory, primarily in
E u rope and Asia. The impact of 1997 special operating charges on continuing operations after-tax and
minority interests was $40 million or $0.54 per diluted share. In addition, discontinued operations re s u l t s
included a pre-tax charge of $36 million, after-tax charge of $22 million or $0.29 per diluted share to pro v i d e
a re s e rve for certain WFC aerospace assets. 
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

N O T E  1 2  •  I N C O M E  T A X E S

Income tax provisions from continuing operations were as follows:

Year en de d Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

C u rre n t :
F e d e r a l $ 1 4 8 $ 1 3 2 $ 7 8
State and local 2 5 2 2 2 0
F o re i g n 5 2 4 0 2 6

2 2 5 1 9 4 1 2 4
D e f e rre d :

F e d e r a l ( 2 ) 1 0 ( 2 7 )
State and local – 6 ( 3 )
F o re i g n ( 2 6 ) ( 1 ) ( 1 0 3 )

( 2 8 ) 1 5 ( 1 3 3 )

Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 1 9 7 $ 2 0 9 $ ( 9 )

Domestic and foreign earnings (loss) before income taxes and other items from continuing operations were
as follows:

Year en de d Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

D o m e s t i c $ 5 2 4 $ 4 0 7 $ 2 8 8
F o re i g n ( 1 0 ) 1 5 7 ( 4 5 9 )

Total earnings (loss) before income taxes and other items $ 5 1 4 $ 5 6 4 $ ( 1 7 1 )

E a rnings (loss) before income taxes and other items, including discontinued operations (refer to Note 4),
w e re $514 million, $589 million and $(178) million for 1999, 1998 and 1997, re s p e c t i v e l y.

Reconciliations between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and the consolidated effective income
tax (benefit) rate for earnings before income taxes and other items for continuing operations are as follows:

Year en de d Decem ber 31  (mi ll i o ns of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

U.S. federal statutory rate 3 5 . 0 % 3 5 . 0 % ( 3 5 . 0 ) %
Impact of re s t ructuring charg e — — 1 8 . 2
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 5 . 5 5 . 3 8 . 8
Nondeductible goodwill amort i z a t i o n 1 . 6 1 . 5 2 . 3
Excess foreign taxes (benefits) ( 1 . 1 ) ( 1 . 0 ) ( 4 . 0 )
U n recognized prior year deferred tax assets and carry f o rw a rd s ( 1 . 7 ) ( 1 . 9 ) ( 5 . 1 )
F o reign dividends and subpart F income 2 . 8 2 . 2 ( 5 . 9 )
F o reign government tax incentive ( 0 . 2 ) ( 4 . 0 ) —
Unbenefited operating losses 2 . 1 3 . 3 1 0 . 9
P e rmanent diff e re n c e s ( 6 . 3 ) 0 . 8 ( 4 . 5 )
Other items 0 . 5 ( 4 . 1 ) 9 . 3

E ffective income tax (benefit) rate 3 8 . 2 % 3 7 . 1 % ( 5 . 0 ) %

Inclusive of discontinued operations, the effective income tax (benefit) rate was 38.2%, 37.3% and (6.9)%
for 1999, 1998 and 1997, re s p e c t i v e l y.
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D e f e rred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary diff e rences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities used for financial re p o rting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Significant components of the company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets were as follows:

Decem be r 31 (mil l i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

D e f e rred tax liabilities:
P ro p e rt y, plant and equipment $ 1 0 9 $ 1 5 8
Financial services leveraged leases 1 2 4 1 2 5
S o f t w a re costs 2 8 1 5
Contested liabilities 3 4 —
O t h e r 1 2 8 3 7

Total deferred tax liabilities 4 2 3 3 3 5

D e f e rred tax assets:
P o s t re t i rement obligation 1 7 6 1 7 0
R e s t ructuring costs 2 4 5 8
P roduct warranty accru a l 2 6 3 3
Receivable and inventory allowances 8 1 3 3
Loss carry f o rw a rd s 1 5 2 1 4 8
Employee compensation 4 5 3 9
O t h e r 5 5 8 2

Total deferred tax assets 5 5 9 5 6 3

Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets ( 1 8 ) ( 1 9 )

D e f e rred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 5 4 1 5 4 4

Net deferred tax assets $ 1 1 8 $ 2 0 9

The company has re c o rded valuation allowances to reflect the estimated amount of net operating loss car-
ry f o rw a rds, re s t ructuring costs and other deferred tax assets which may not be realized.  

The company provides deferred taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates to
the extent such earnings are expected to be remitted. Generally, earnings have been remitted only when no
significant net tax liability would have been incurred. No provision has been made for U.S. or foreign taxes
that may result from future remittances of the undistributed earnings ($482 million at December 31, 1999)
of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates expected to be reinvested indefinitely. Determination of the deferre d
income tax liability on these unremitted earnings is not practicable as such liability, if any, is dependent on
c i rcumstances existing when remittance occurs.

The company paid income taxes of $235 million in 1999, $239 million in 1998 and $23 million in 1997. The
i n c rease in 1998 is due to increased earnings as 1997 included $343 million in pre-tax re s t ructuring charg e s .

At December 31, 1999, the company had foreign net operating loss carry f o rw a rds of $362 million which are
primarily nonexpiring.

N O T E  1 3  •  P E N S I O N  A N D  P O S T R E T I R E M E N T  M E D I C A L  B E N E F I T S  P L A N S

The company maintains both contributory and noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all North American and Brazilian employees and certain European employees. Benefits are
based primarily on compensation during a specified period before re t i rement or specified amounts for each
year of service. The company’s present funding policy is to generally make the minimum annual contribu-
tion re q u i red by applicable regulations. Assets held by the plans consist primarily of listed common stocks
and bonds, government securities, investments in trust funds, bank deposits and other investments.

The company also currently sponsors a defined benefit health-care plan that provides postre t i rement med-
ical benefits to full time U.S. employees who have worked 10 years and attained age 55 while in serv i c e
with the company. The plan is currently noncontributory and contains cost-sharing features such as
deductibles, coinsurance and a lifetime maximum. The company does not fund the plan. No significant
p o s t re t i rement medical benefits are provided by the company to non-U.S. employees.
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Pen s i o n Ben ef i t s

( m i ll i o ns  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation as of January 1 $ 1 , 3 4 4 $ 1 , 2 5 5 $ 1 , 0 5 7
S e rvice cost 5 0 4 9 4 1
I n t e rest cost 9 8 9 1 8 4
Plan participants’ contributions 1 1 1
A m e n d m e n t s 7 3 0 3 5
Business combinations — — 1 6 0
Actuarial (gain) loss ( 1 1 4 ) 2 8 3 6
Benefits paid ( 9 3 ) ( 8 6 ) ( 1 5 2 )
C u rt a i l m e n t s — ( 1 4 ) ( 1 4 )
Special termination benefits ( 2 ) ( 2 ) 1 7
F o reign currency exchange rate changes ( 4 9 ) ( 8 ) ( 1 0 )

Benefit obligation as of December 31 $ 1 , 2 4 2 $ 1 , 3 4 4 $ 1 , 2 5 5

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 1 , 6 7 2 $ 1 , 4 5 2 $ 1 , 3 2 2
Actual re t u rn on plan assets 6 4 4 2 9 2 2 0 7
Business combinations — — 7 2
Employer contributions 1 2 1 7 7
Plan participants’ contributions 1 1 1
Benefits paid ( 9 3 ) ( 8 6 ) ( 1 5 2 )
F o reign currency exchange rate changes ( 3 5 ) ( 4 ) ( 5 )

Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 2 , 2 0 1 $ 1 , 6 7 2 $ 1 , 4 5 2

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) cost and total amount re c o g n i z e d :
Funded status as of December 31 $ 9 5 9 $ 3 2 8 $ 1 9 7
U n recognized actuarial (gain) ( 1 , 0 8 7 ) ( 4 7 1 ) ( 3 6 5 )
U n recognized prior service cost 7 3 7 1 8 3
U n recognized transition asset 1 1 2 2 3 3

P repaid (accrued) cost as of December 31 $ ( 4 4 ) $ ( 5 0 ) $ ( 5 2 )

P repaid cost at December 31 $ 8 5 $ 1 1 4 $ 9 8
A c c rued benefit liability at December 31 ( 1 3 8 ) ( 1 7 3 ) ( 1 5 9 )
Intangible asset 2 2 3
O t h e r 7 7 6

Total recognized as of December 31 $ ( 4 4 ) $ ( 5 0 ) $ ( 5 2 )

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 5.0 to 11.3% 5.5 to 9.0% 6.0 to 9.0%
Expected re t u rn on assets 6.0 to 11.3% 6.0 to 9.5% 4.5 to 9.5%
Rate of compensation incre a s e 2.5 to 8.0% 2.0 to 8.0% 2.5 to 9.0%

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
S e rvice cost $ 5 0 $ 4 9 $ 4 1
I n t e rest cost 9 8 9 1 8 4
Expected re t u rn on plan assets ( 1 2 7 ) ( 1 1 2 ) ( 1 0 3 )
Recognized actuarial (gain) ( 7 ) ( 8 ) ( 7 )
A m o rtization of prior service cost 9 9 8
A m o rtization of transition assets ( 1 ) — ( 3 )

Net periodic benefit cost 2 2 2 9 2 0

C u rt a i l m e n t s — ( 7 ) ( 1 3 )
Special termination benefits ( 1 ) 2 1 7
S e t t l e m e n t s — ( 3 ) ( 2 9 )

Total cost $ 2 1 $ 2 1 $ ( 5 )
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Po s treti rem ent Medical  B en ef i t s

( m i ll i ons  of do ll a rs ) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation as of January 1 $ 4 2 8 $ 3 8 8 $ 3 8 2
S e rvice cost 1 0 1 0 1 0
I n t e rest cost 3 0 2 9 2 9
Actuarial (gain) loss ( 3 4 ) 2 2 ( 1 5 )
Benefits paid ( 2 0 ) ( 2 1 ) ( 1 8 )

Benefit obligation as of December 31 $ 4 1 4 $ 4 2 8 $ 3 8 8

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ — $ — $ —
Employer contributions 2 0 2 1 1 8
Benefits paid ( 2 0 ) ( 2 1 ) ( 1 8 )

Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ — $ — $ —

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) cost and total amount re c o g n i z e d :
Funded status as of December 31 $ ( 4 1 4 ) $ ( 4 2 8 ) $ ( 3 8 8 )
U n recognized actuarial (gain) loss ( 2 7 ) 8 ( 1 4 )

P repaid (accrued) cost as of December 31 $ ( 4 4 1 ) $ ( 4 2 0 ) $ ( 4 0 2 )

P repaid cost at December 31 — — —
A c c rued benefit liability at December 31 ( 4 4 1 ) ( 4 2 0 ) ( 4 0 2 )

Total recognized as of December 31 $ ( 4 4 1 ) $ ( 4 2 0 ) $ ( 4 0 2 )

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 8 . 0 0 % 7 . 2 5 % 7 . 7 5 %
Medical costs trend rate:

For year ending December 31 7 . 0 0 % 7 . 0 0 % 8 . 0 0 %
Ultimate (year 2000) 6 . 0 0 % 6 . 0 0 % 6 . 0 0 %

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
S e rvice cost $ 1 0 $ 1 0 $ 1 0
I n t e rest cost 3 0 2 9 2 9

Net periodic benefit cost $ 4 0 $ 3 9 $ 3 9

Total cost $ 4 0 $ 3 9 $ 3 9

The medical cost trend significantly affects the re p o rted postre t i rement benefit cost and benefit obligations.
A one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following eff e c t s :

O n e - percen t a ge - O n e - pe rcen t a ge -
( m i ll i ons of do ll a rs ) point inc rea s e point dec rea s e

E ffect on total service cost and interest cost components $ 3 $ ( 3 )
E ffect on postre t i rement benefit obligation $ 2 9 $ ( 2 8 )
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The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the pen-
sion plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $80 million, $71 million and $5
million, re s p e c t i v e l y, as of December 31, 1999, $86 million, $67 million and $6 million, re s p e c t i v e l y, as of
December 31, 1998, and $312 million, $221 million and $140 million, re s p e c t i v e l y, as of December 31, 1997.

The U.S. pension plans provide that in the event of a plan termination within five years following a change
in control of the company, any assets held by the plans in excess of the amounts needed to fund accru e d
benefits would be used to provide additional benefits to plan participants. A change in control generally
means one not approved by the incumbent board of directors, including an acquisition of 25% or more of
the voting power of the company's outstanding stock or a change in a majority of the incumbent board .

The company maintains a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering substantially all U.S. employees. Com-
pany matching contributions for domestic hourly and certain other employees under the plan, based on the
c o m p a n y ’s annual operating results and the level of individual part i c i p a n t ’s contributions, amounted to $9
million, $7 million and $6 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

N O T E  1 4  •  C O N T I N G E N C I E S

The company is involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. Management,
after taking into consideration legal counsel’s evaluation of such actions, is of the opinion that the outcome
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the company’s financial position.

The company is a party to certain financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk, which are entered into
in the normal course of business. These instruments consist of financial guarantees, re p u rchase agre e-
ments and letters of credit. The company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperf o rmance by the
debtors is the contractual amount of the financial instruments. The company uses the same credit policies
in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. Collateral
or other security is generally re q u i red to support financial instruments with off-balance-sheet credit risk.

At December 31, 1999 the company had $277 million in receivables subject to resourse provisions and $169
million in guarantees of customer lines of credit at commercial banks.

At December 31, 1999, the company had noncancelable operating lease commitments totaling $234 million.
The annual future minimum lease payments are detailed below.

( m i ll i ons of do ll a rs ) An nual Expen s e

2 0 0 0 $ 6 2
2 0 0 1 4 3
2 0 0 2 3 5
2 0 0 3 2 9
2 0 0 4 2 7
T h e re a f t e r 3 8

Total noncancellable operating lease commitments $ 2 3 4

The company’s rent expense was $87 million, $81 million and $82 million for the years 1999, 1998 and 1997,
re s p e c t i v e l y.
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N O T E  1 5  •  B U S I N E S S  S E G M E N T  I N F O R M A T I O N

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial inform a-
tion is available that is evaluated on a regular basis by the chief operating decision maker, or decision mak-
ing group, in deciding how to allocate re s o u rces to an individual segment and in assessing perf o rmance of
the segment.

The company identifies such segments based upon geographical regions of operations because each oper-
ating segment manufactures home appliances and related components, but serves strategically diff e re n t
markets. The chief operating decision maker evaluates perf o rmance based upon each segment’s operating
income, which is defined as income before interest income or interest expense, taxes and minority inter-
ests. Intersegment sales and transfers are generally at current market prices, as if the sales or transfers
w e re to third parties. The “Other” segment primarily includes corporate expenses and eliminations.

The company generally evaluates business segments based on net sales, not including intersegment appli-
ance sales. Intersegment sales are included in Other and Eliminations. Total assets are those assets dire c t l y
associated with the respective operating activities. Other assets consist principally of assets related to cor-
porate activities, including the assets of discontinued operations held for sale in 1997.

Substantially all of the company’s trade receivables are from distributors and re t a i l e r s .

Sales activity with Sears, Roebuck and Co., a North American major home appliance re t a i l e r, re p re s e n t e d
18%, 17% and 20% of consolidated net sales in 1999, 1998 and 1997. Related receivables were 22%, 16% and
17% of consolidated trade receivables as of December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997.

The company conducts business in two countries which individually comprised over ten percent of consoli-
dated net sales and total assets within the last three years. The United States re p resented 54%, 50% and
57% of consolidated net sales for 1999, 1998 and 1997, re s p e c t i v e l y, while Brazil totalled 15% and 19% for
1999 and 1998. As a percentage of total assets, the United States accounted for 65%, 57% and 53% at the
end of 1999, 1998 and 1997. Brazil accounted for 24%, 31% and 31% of total assets at the end of 1999, 1998
and 1997, re s p e c t i v e l y. The company’s Brazilian affiliates were consolidated in November of 1997 and
t h e re f o re included only in the the total asset calculation for 1997.
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Nor t h La ti n O t h er and To t a l
( m i ll i o ns  of do ll a rs ) Am er i c a Eu rope Am eri c a As i a E l i m i n a ti on s Wh i rl poo l

G E O G R A P H I C  S E G M E N T S

Net sales
1 9 9 9 $ 6 , 1 5 9 $ 2 , 4 5 2 $ 1 , 6 6 8 $ 3 7 5 $ ( 1 4 3 ) $ 1 0 , 5 1 1
1 9 9 8 $ 5 , 5 9 9 $ 2 , 4 3 9 $ 2 , 0 9 0 $ 3 1 3 $ ( 1 1 8 ) $ 1 0 , 3 2 3
1 9 9 7 $ 5 , 2 6 3 $ 2 , 3 4 3 $ 4 4 7 $ 4 0 0 $ 1 6 4 $ 8 , 6 1 7

Intangible amort i z a t i o n
1 9 9 9 $ 3 $ 1 6 $ 2 $ 5 $ 5 $ 3 1
1 9 9 8 $ 3 $ 1 6 $ 6 $ 4 $ 1 0 $ 3 9
1 9 9 7 $ 3 $ 1 6 $ 1 $ 4 $ 1 0 $ 3 4

D e p re c i a t i o n
1 9 9 9 $ 1 5 1 $ 8 8 $ 9 5 $ 2 1 $ 3 1 $ 3 8 6
1 9 9 8 $ 1 4 3 $ 9 4 $ 1 2 6 $ 1 5 $ 2 1 $ 3 9 9
1 9 9 7 $ 1 4 5 $ 1 1 0 $ 3 $ 1 3 $ 5 1 $ 3 2 2

R e s t ructuring costs and
special charg e s

1 9 9 9 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
1 9 9 8 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
1 9 9 7 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 3 9 6 $ 3 9 6

Operating profit (loss)
1 9 9 9 $ 7 2 5 $ 1 7 7 $ 1 2 0 $ 1 3 $ ( 1 6 0 ) $ 8 7 5
1 9 9 8 $ 6 3 0 $ 1 2 2 $ 1 2 0 $ ( 1 7 ) $ ( 1 6 7 ) $ 6 8 8
1 9 9 7 $ 5 4 6 $ 5 4 $ 2 2 $ ( 6 2 ) $ ( 5 4 9 ) $ 1 1

Total assets
1 9 9 9 $ 2 , 2 5 4 $ 1 , 9 2 1 $ 1 , 6 5 3 $ 7 1 9 $ 2 7 9 $ 6 , 8 2 6
1 9 9 8 $ 2 , 0 9 1 $ 2 , 2 9 8 $ 2 , 4 9 9 $ 7 2 2 $ 3 2 5 $ 7 , 9 3 5
1 9 9 7 $ 2 , 0 4 6 $ 1 , 9 9 9 $ 2 , 4 0 3 $ 6 7 2 $ 1 , 1 5 0 $ 8 , 2 7 0

Capital expenditure s
1 9 9 9 $ 2 2 7 $ 7 7 $ 1 1 0 $ 9 $ 1 4 $ 4 3 7
1 9 9 8 $ 1 8 8 $ 7 8 $ 2 3 9 $ 2 5 $ 1 2 $ 5 4 2
1 9 9 7 $ 1 2 8 $ 8 4 $ 4 9 $ 1 0 0 $ 1 7 $ 3 7 8
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N O T E  1 6  •  Q U A R T E R L Y  R E S U L T S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S  ( U N A U D I T E D )

T h re e Mont hs Ended

( m i ll i ons of do ll a rs ,e xcept per share data) D ece m ber 31 Sept em ber  30 June 30 Ma rch 31

1 9 9 9 :
Net sales $ 2 , 6 8 9 $ 2 , 7 1 9 $ 2 , 6 1 7 $ 2 , 4 8 6
Cost of products sold $ 1 , 9 8 3 $ 2 , 0 3 6 $ 1 , 9 6 7 $ 1 , 8 6 6
E a rnings from continuing operations $ 1 1 3 $ 1 0 7 $ 9 9 $ 2 8
Net earn i n g s $ 1 1 3 $ 1 0 7 $ 9 9 $ 2 8

Per share of common stock:
Basic earnings from continuing operations $ 1 . 5 2 $ 1 . 4 2 $ 1 . 3 2 $ . 3 7
Basic net earnings $ 1 . 5 2 $ 1 . 4 2 $ 1 . 3 2 $ . 3 7

Diluted earnings fro m continuing operations $ 1 . 5 1 $ 1 . 4 0 $ 1 . 3 0 $ . 3 6
Diluted net earn i n g s $ 1 . 5 1 $ 1 . 4 0 $ 1 . 3 0 $ . 3 6

Dividends paid $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4
Stock price:

H i g h $ 7 3 . 5 6 $ 7 8 . 2 5 $ 7 4 . 0 0 $ 5 7 . 0 0
L o w $ 5 6 . 7 5 $ 6 1 . 2 5 $ 5 0 . 5 0 $ 4 0 . 9 4
C l o s e $ 6 5 . 0 6 $ 6 5 . 3 1 $ 7 4 . 0 0 $ 5 4 . 3 8

The first quarter earnings and earnings per share were reduced $60 million after-taxes and minority inter-
ests, or $0.79 per share, by the first quart e r ’s Brazilian currency devaluation.

T h re e Mont hs Ended

( m i ll i ons of do ll a rs ,e xcept per share data) D ece m ber 31 Sept em ber  30 June 30 Ma rch 31

1 9 9 8 :
Net sales $ 2 , 7 3 5 $ 2 , 5 3 9 $ 2 , 5 8 5 $ 2 , 4 6 4
Cost of products sold $ 2 , 0 4 5 $ 1 , 9 2 9 $ 1 , 9 6 2 $ 1 , 8 6 9
E a rnings from continuing operations $ 8 3 $ 7 8 $ 8 1 $ 6 8
Net earn i n g s $ 8 3 $ 7 8 $ 8 4 $ 8 0

Per share of common stock:
Basic earnings from continuing operations $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 0 3 $ 1 . 0 7 $ . 9 1
Basic net earnings $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 0 3 $ 1 . 1 1 $ 1 . 0 6

Diluted earnings from continuing operations $ 1 . 0 9 $ 1 . 0 2 $ 1 . 0 5 $ . 9 0
Diluted net earn i n g s $ 1 . 0 9 $ 1 . 0 2 $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 0 5

Dividends paid $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4 $ . 3 4
Stock price:

H i g h $ 5 9 . 5 0 $ 6 9 . 9 4 $ 7 5 . 2 5 $ 7 0 . 0 0
L o w $ 4 3 . 6 9 $ 4 5 . 0 0 $ 6 2 . 4 4 $ 5 0 . 3 8
C l o s e $ 5 5 . 3 8 $ 4 7 . 0 0 $ 6 8 . 7 5 $ 6 8 . 6 9
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T H E  S T O C K H O L D E R S  A N D  B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S  

W H I R L P O O L  C O R P O R A T I O N  —  B E N T O N  H A R B O R , M I C H I G A N

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Whirlpool Corporation as of December
31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We did not audit the 1998 and 1997 financial statements of Brasmotor S.A.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, whose statements reflect total assets of $2,500 million as of December
31, 1998 and net earnings of $58 million and $41 million for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997,
re s p e c t i v e l y. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose re p o rts have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to data included for Brasmotor S.A. and its consolidated subsidiaries,
is based on the re p o rts of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards re q u i re that we plan and perf o rm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits and the re p o rts of the other audi-
tors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the re p o rts of the other auditors, the financial statements re f e rre d
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Whirlpool Corpora-
tion at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

C H I C A G O , I L L I N O I S

J A N U A R Y  2 0 , 2 0 0 0

R E P O R T  O F  E R N S T  & Y O U N G  L L P

I N D E P E N D E N T  A U D I T O R S
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The management of Whirlpool Corporation has pre p a red the accompanying financial statements. The
financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, whose re p o rt, based
upon their audits, expresses the opinion that these financial statements present fairly the consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Whirlpool and its subsidiaries in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Their audits are conducted in conform i t y
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.

The financial statements were pre p a red from the company’s accounting re c o rds, books and accounts
which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect all material transactions. The company maintains a
system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that the company’s accounting
re c o rds, books and accounts are accurate and that transactions are properly re c o rded in the company’s
books and re c o rds, and the company’s assets are maintained and accounted for, in accordance with man-
a g e m e n t ’s authorizations. The company’s accounting re c o rds, policies and internal controls are re g u l a r l y
reviewed by an internal audit staff .

The audit committee of the board of directors of the company, which is composed of five directors who are
not employed by the company, considers and makes recommendations to the board of directors as to
accounting and auditing matters concerning the company, including recommending for appointment by
the board the firm of independent auditors engaged on an annual basis to audit the financial statements of
Whirlpool and its majority-owned subsidiaries. The audit committee meets with the independent auditors
at least three times each year to review the scope of the audit, the results of the audit and such re c o m m e n-
dations as may be made by said auditors with respect to the company’s accounting methods and system of
i n t e rnal contro l s .

M A R K  E . B R O W N

E X E C U T I V E  V I C E  P R E S I D E N T  

A N D  C H I E F  F I N A N C I A L  O F F I C E R

F E B R U A R Y  1 2 , 2 0 0 0

R E P O R T  B Y  M A N A G E M E N T  

O N  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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( m i ll i o ns  of do ll a rs , except share  and em p l oyee  data) 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8

C O N S O L I D A T E D  O P E R A T I O N S

Net sales $ 1 0 , 5 1 1 $ 1 0 , 3 2 3

Operating profit ( 1 ) $ 8 7 5 $ 6 8 8
E a rnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and other items $ 5 1 4 $ 5 6 4
E a rnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 3 4 7 $ 3 1 0
E a rnings (loss) from discontinued operations ( 2 ) $ — $ 1 5
Net earnings (loss) ( 3 ) $ 3 4 7 $ 3 2 5

Net capital expenditure s $ 4 3 7 $ 5 2 3
D e p re c i a t i o n $ 3 8 6 $ 3 9 9
D i v i d e n d s $ 1 0 3 $ 1 0 2

C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N

C u rrent assets $ 3 , 1 7 7 $ 3 , 8 8 2
C u rrent liabilities $ 2 , 8 9 2 $ 3 , 2 6 7
Working capital $ 2 8 5 $ 6 1 5
P ro p e rt y, plant and equipment – net $ 2 , 1 7 8 $ 2 , 4 1 8
Total assets $ 6 , 8 2 6 $ 7 , 9 3 5
L o n g - t e rm debt $ 7 1 4 $ 1 , 0 8 7
Stockholders’ equity $ 1 , 8 6 7 $ 2 , 0 0 1

P E R  S H A R E  D A T A

Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 4 . 6 1 $ 4 . 0 9
Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 0 6
Diluted net earnings (loss) ( 3 ) $ 4 . 5 6 $ 4 . 2 5
D i v i d e n d s $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6
Book value $ 2 4 . 5 5 $ 2 6 . 1 6
Closing stock price – NYSE $ 6 5 . 0 6 $ 5 5 . 3 8

K E Y  R A T I O S  ( 4 )

Operating profit marg i n 8 . 3 % 6 . 7 %
P re-tax margin ( 5 ) 4 . 9 % 5 . 5 %
Net margin ( 6 ) 3 . 3 % 3 . 0 %
R e t u rn on average stockholders’ equity ( 7 ) 1 7 . 9 % 1 7 . 2 %
R e t u rn on average total assets ( 8 ) 4 . 2 % 4 . 6 %
C u rrent assets to current liabilities 1 . 1 1 . 2
Total debt-appliance business as a percent of invested capital ( 9 ) 3 7 . 7 % 4 3 . 5 %
Price earnings ratio 1 4 . 3 1 3 . 0
I n t e rest coverage ( 1 0 ) 4 . 1 3 . 2

O T H E R  D A T A

Number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):
Average – on a diluted basis 7 6 , 0 4 4 7 6 , 5 0 7
Ye a r- e n d 7 4 , 4 6 3 7 6 , 0 8 9

Number of stockholders (year- e n d ) 1 2 , 5 3 1 1 3 , 5 8 4
Number of employees (year- e n d ) 6 1 , 0 6 6 5 8 , 6 3 0
Total re t u rn to shareholders (five year annualized) ( 1 1 ) 7 . 9 % ( 1 . 2 ) %

W h i rl po o l  Co rpo ra ti o n
1 9 9 9  Ann ua l  Re p o r t
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E L E V E N - Y E A R  C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T I S T I C A L  R E V I E W

( 1 ) R e s t ructuring and special operating charges were $405 million in 1997 (refer to Note 11), $30 million in 1996 and $250 million in 1994.

( 2 ) The Company’s financial services business was discontinued in 1997.

( 3 ) Includes cumulative effect of accounting changes: 1993 – Accounting for postre t i rement benefits other than pensions of ($180) million

or ($2.42) per diluted share .

( 4 ) Excluding the first quarter impact of  the Brazil ian currency devaluation in 1999 and the gain from discontinued operations in 1998,

re t u rns on average stockholders’ equity were 19.9% and 16.5%, and re t u rns on average total assets were 5.7% and 4.3%.  Excluding

n o n - re c u rring items, selected 1997 Key Ratios would be as follows:  a) Operating profit margin – 4.7%, b)  Pre-tax margin – 2.7%, c) Net

m a rgin – 2.6%, d)  Return on average stockholders’ equity – 12%, e) Return on average total assets – 2.7%, f) Interest coverage – 3.0%.

( 5 ) E a rnings from continuing operations before income taxes and other items, as a percent of sales.
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1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 1 9 9 4 1 9 9 3 1 9 9 2 1 9 9 1 1 9 9 0 1 9 8 9

$ 8 , 6 1 7 $ 8 , 5 2 3 $ 8 , 1 6 3 $ 7 , 9 4 9 $ 7 , 3 6 8 $ 7 , 0 9 7 $ 6 , 5 5 0 $ 6 , 4 2 4 $ 6 , 1 3 8

$ 1 1 $ 2 7 8 $ 3 6 6 $ 3 7 0 $ 5 0 4 $ 4 4 7 $ 3 5 3 $ 3 0 0 $ 3 7 7
$ ( 1 7 1 ) $ 1 0 0 $ 2 1 4 $ 2 6 9 $ 4 1 8 $ 3 3 4 $ 2 5 6 $ 1 7 7 $ 2 8 1
$ ( 4 6 ) $ 1 4 1 $ 1 9 5 $ 1 4 7 $ 2 5 7 $ 1 7 9 $ 1 3 9 $ 4 5 $ 1 6 9
$ 3 1 $ 1 5 $ 1 4 $ 1 1 $ ( 2 8 ) $ 2 6 $ 3 1 $ 2 7 $ 1 8
$ ( 1 5 ) $ 1 5 6 $ 2 0 9 $ 1 5 8 $ 5 1 $ 2 0 5 $ 1 7 0 $ 7 2 $ 1 8 7

$ 3 7 8 $ 3 3 6 $ 4 8 3 $ 4 1 8 $ 3 0 9 $ 2 8 8 $ 2 8 7 $ 2 6 5 $ 2 0 8
$ 3 2 2 $ 3 1 8 $ 2 8 2 $ 2 4 6 $ 2 4 1 $ 2 7 5 $ 2 3 3 $ 2 4 7 $ 2 2 2
$ 1 0 2 $ 1 0 1 $ 1 0 0 $ 9 0 $ 8 5 $ 7 7 $ 7 6 $ 7 6 $ 7 6

$ 4 , 2 8 1 $ 3 , 8 1 2 $ 3 , 5 4 1 $ 3 , 0 7 8 $ 2 , 7 0 8 $ 2 , 7 4 0 $ 2 , 9 2 0 $ 2 , 9 0 0 $ 2 , 8 8 9
$ 3 , 6 7 6 $ 4 , 0 2 2 $ 3 , 8 2 9 $ 2 , 9 8 8 $ 2 , 7 6 3 $ 2 , 8 8 7 $ 2 , 9 3 1 $ 2 , 6 5 1 $ 2 , 2 5 1
$ 6 0 5 $ ( 2 1 0 ) $ ( 2 8 8 ) $ 9 0 $ ( 5 5 ) $ ( 1 4 7 ) $ ( 1 1 ) $ 2 4 9 $ 6 3 8
$ 2 , 3 7 5 $ 1 , 7 9 8 $ 1 , 7 7 9 $ 1 , 4 4 0 $ 1 , 3 1 9 $ 1 , 3 2 5 $ 1 , 4 0 0 $ 1 , 3 4 9 $ 1 , 2 8 8
$ 8 , 2 7 0 $ 8 , 0 1 5 $ 7 , 8 0 0 $ 6 , 6 5 5 $ 6 , 0 4 7 $ 6 , 1 1 8 $ 6 , 4 4 5 $ 5 , 6 1 4 $ 5 , 3 5 4
$ 1 , 0 7 4 $ 9 5 5 $ 9 8 3 $ 8 8 5 $ 8 4 0 $ 1 , 2 1 5 $ 1 , 5 2 8 $ 8 7 4 $ 9 8 2
$ 1 , 7 7 1 $ 1 , 9 2 6 $ 1 , 8 7 7 $ 1 , 7 2 3 $ 1 , 6 4 8 $ 1 , 6 0 0 $ 1 , 5 1 5 $ 1 , 4 2 4 $ 1 , 4 2 1

$ ( 0 . 6 2 ) $ 1 . 9 0 $ 2 . 6 4 $ 1 . 9 8 $ 3 . 6 0 $ 2 . 5 5 $ 2 . 0 0 $ 0 . 6 5 $ 2 . 4 4
$ ( 0 . 6 2 ) $ 1 . 8 8 $ 2 . 6 0 $ 1 . 9 5 $ 3 . 4 7 $ 2 . 4 6 $ 1 . 9 8 $ 0 . 6 5 $ 2 . 4 4
$ ( 0 . 2 0 ) $ 2 . 0 8 $ 2 . 7 8 $ 2 . 1 0 $ 0 . 7 1 $ 2 . 8 1 $ 2 . 4 1 $ 1 . 0 4 $ 2 . 7 0
$ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 3 6 $ 1 . 2 2 $ 1 . 1 9 $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 1 0 $ 1 . 1 0
$ 2 3 . 7 1 $ 2 5 . 9 3 $ 2 5 . 4 0 $ 2 3 . 2 1 $ 2 3 . 1 7 $ 2 2 . 9 1 $ 2 1 . 7 8 $ 2 0 . 5 1 $ 2 0 . 4 9
$ 5 5 . 0 0 $ 4 6 . 6 3 $ 5 3 . 2 5 $ 5 0 . 2 5 $ 6 6 . 5 0 $ 4 4 . 6 3 $ 3 8 . 8 8 $ 2 3 . 5 0 $ 3 3 . 0 0

0 . 1 % 3 . 3 % 4 . 5 % 4 . 7 % 6 . 8 % 6 . 3 % 5 . 4 % 4 . 7 % 6 . 1 %
( 2 . 0 ) % 1 . 2 % 2 . 6 % 3 . 4 % 5 . 7 % 4 . 7 % 3 . 9 % 2 . 8 % 4 . 6 %
( 0 . 5 ) % 1 . 7 % 2 . 4 % 1 . 8 % 3 . 5 % 2 . 5 % 2 . 1 % 0 . 7 % 2 . 8 %
( 0 . 8 ) % 8 . 2 % 1 1 . 6 % 9 . 4 % 1 4 . 2 % 1 3 . 1 % 1 1 . 6 % 5 . 1 % 1 3 . 7 %
( 0 . 7 ) % 1 . 8 % 3 . 0 % 2 . 8 % 4 . 0 % 3 . 3 % 2 . 9 % 1 . 4 % 4 . 9 %
1 . 2 0 . 9 0 . 9 1 . 0 1 . 0 0 . 9 1 . 0 1 . 1 1 . 3

4 6 . 1 % 4 4 . 2 % 4 5 . 2 % 3 5 . 6 % 3 3 . 8 % 4 2 . 8 % 4 6 . 7 % 3 9 . 1 % 3 9 . 2 %
— 2 2 . 4 1 9 . 2 2 3 . 9 2 1 . 2 1 5 . 9 1 6 . 1 2 2 . 6 1 2 . 2
— 1 . 6 2 . 7 3 . 6 5 . 0 3 . 5 3 . 0 2 . 3 3 . 5

7 4 , 6 9 7 7 7 , 1 7 8 7 6 , 8 1 2 7 7 , 5 8 8 7 6 , 0 1 3 7 5 , 6 6 1 7 2 , 5 8 1 6 9 , 5 9 5 6 9 , 4 6 1
7 5 , 2 6 2 7 4 , 4 1 5 7 4 , 0 8 1 7 3 , 8 4 5 7 3 , 0 6 8 7 0 , 0 2 7 6 9 , 6 4 0 6 9 , 4 6 5 6 9 , 3 8 2
1 0 , 1 7 1 1 1 , 0 3 3 1 1 , 6 8 6 1 1 , 8 2 1 1 1 , 4 3 8 1 1 , 7 2 4 1 2 , 0 3 2 1 2 , 5 4 2 1 2 , 4 5 4
6 1 , 3 7 0 4 8 , 1 6 3 4 5 , 4 3 5 3 9 , 0 1 6 3 9 , 5 9 0 3 8 , 5 2 0 3 7 , 8 8 6 3 6 , 1 5 7 3 9 , 4 1 1

6 . 8 % 6 . 3 % 2 0 . 8 % 1 2 . 0 % 2 5 . 8 % 1 7 . 0 % 6 . 7 % 2 . 8 % 1 1 . 3 %

( 6 ) E a rnings from continuing operations, as a percent of sales.

( 7 ) Net earnings (loss) before accounting change, divided by average stockholders’ equity.

( 8 ) Net earnings (loss) before accounting change, plus minority interest divided by average total assets.

( 9 ) Debt divided by debt, stockholders’ equity and minority intere s t s .

( 1 0 ) Ratio of earnings from continuing operations (before income taxes, accounting change and interest expense) to interest expense.

( 1 1 ) Stock appreciation plus reinvested dividends.



6 2

D I R E C T O R S

H E R M A N  C A I N 2 , 3

C h a i rman of the Board, Godfather’s Pizza, Inc. and
Chief Executive Officer and President, Digital
Restaurant Solutions

G A R Y  T . D I C A M I L L O 1 , 2

C h a i rman and Chief Executive Off i c e r, Polaro i d
C o r p o r a t i o n

J E F F  M . F E T T I G

P resident and Chief Operating Officer of the Company

A L L E N  D . G I L M O U R 3 , 4

F o rmer Vice Chairman, Ford Motor Company

K A T H L E E N  J . H E M P E L 1 , 3

F o rmer Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Off i c e r,
F o rt Howard Corp. (now Fort James Corp.)
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C h a i rman of the Board and Chief Executive Off i c e r

J E F F  M . F E T T I G

P resident and Chief Operating Off i c e r

M A R K  E . B R O W N

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Off i c e r
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Executive Vice President, Whirlpool Europe Region
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Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs and 
General Counsel
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Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Off i c e r
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Senior Vice President, Human Resourc e s
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Executive Vice President, Latin American Region
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Executive Vice President, North American Region
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Global Pro c u rement Operations
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M A R C  B I T Z E R

B a u k n e c h t Brand, Whirlpool Euro p e
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P resident and Chief Executive Off i c e r,
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P resident and Chief Executive Off i c e r, Embraco S.A.
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M I C H A E L  A . T O D M A N
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F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N

Whirlpool Corporation’s annual re p o rt on Form 10-K,
a cassette-tape re c o rding of the annual re p o rt to
s h a reholders and other financial information is
available free of charg e .

If you are not a stockholder of re c o rd — that is, if
your Whirlpool shares are re g i s t e red in the name of
a bro k e r, bank or other nominee — you must ask
that holder to mail stockholder re p o rts directly to
you. Company earnings releases for each quarter —
typically issued in April, July, October and January
— can be obtained by contacting Whirlpool’s dire c-
t o r, investor re l a t i o n s :

Tom Filstrup, Whirlpool Corporation, 
2000 N. M-63, Mail Drop 2800
Benton Harbor, MI 49022-2692
Telephone:  616/923-3189,  Fax:  616/923-3525
E-mail:  Thomas_C_Filstru p @ e m a i l . w h i r l p o o l . c o m

T R A N S F E R  A G E N T , S H A R E H O L D E R

R E C O R D S , D I V I D E N D  D I S B U R S E M E N T S

A N D  C O R P O R A T E  S E C R E T A R Y

For information about or assistance with individual
stock re c o rds, transactions, dividend checks or
stock certificates, contact:

First Chicago Trust Company, A Division of Equiserv e
P.O. Box 2500, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500
Telephone: 800/446-2617,
E-mail: fctc@em.fcnbd.com, Intern e t :
w w w. f c t c . c o m

For additional corporate information about the
Company contact:

R o b e rt T. Kenagy, Corporate Secre t a ry
Whirlpool Corporation, 2000 N. M-63, Mail Drop 2200
Benton Harbor, MI 49022-2692
Telephone:  616/923-3910,  Fax:  616/923-3722
E-mail:  Robert _ T _ K e n a g y @ e m a i l . w h i r l p o o l . c o m

D I R E C T  S T O C K  P U R C H A S E  P L A N

As a participant in the Dire c t S E RVICE Investment
and Stock Purchase Program, you can be the dire c t
owner of your shares of Whirlpool Common Stock.
New shareholders and current participants may
make cash contributions of up to $250,000 annual-
l y, invested daily, with or without reinvesting their
dividends, and can sell part of the shares held in the
p rogram without exiting the plan. There are mod-
est transaction processing fees and bro k e r a g e
commissions for purchases, sales and dividend
reinvestment. For details, contact First Chicago
Trust Company or visit their Direct Stock Purc h a s e
Plan Web Site to enro l l .

T R U S T E E  F O R  9 . 1 - P E R C E N T  N O T E S

The Chase Manhattan Bank N.A.
450 West 33rd Street, 15th, New York, NY 10001

T R U S T E E  F O R  9 . 5 -  A N D  9 - P E R C E N T

N O T E S

Citibank N.A., Global Agency & Tru s t ,
111 Wall Street, 5th Floor, New York, NY 10043

A N N U A L  M E E T I N G

Whirlpool Corporation’s next annual meeting is
scheduled for Tu e s d a y, April 18, 2000, at 9:30 A.M.
(Central Time), at 181 West Madison Street, Seventh
F l o o r, Chicago, IL

S T O C K  E X C H A N G E S

Common stock of Whirlpool Corporation (exchange
symbol: WHR) is listed on the New York and Chica-
go stock exchanges.

S T O C K - S P L I T  H I S T O R Y

May 1965, 2-for-1;  May 1972, 3-for-1;  
December 1986, 2-for- 1

(Example: One hundred shares of Whirlpool com-
mon stock purchased in April 1964 equaled 1,200
s h a res in January 2000)

C O M M O N - S T O C K  M A R K E T  P R I C E

Hi gh L ow Cl o s e

4Q 1999 $ 7 39⁄1 6 $ 5 63⁄4 $ 6 51⁄1 6

3Q 1999 7 81⁄4 6 11⁄4 6 55⁄1 6

2Q 1999 7 4 5 01⁄2 7 4
1Q 1999 5 7 4 01 5⁄1 6 5 43⁄8

4Q 1998 $ 5 91⁄2 $ 4 31 1⁄1 6 $ 5 53⁄8
3Q 1998 6 91 5⁄1 6 4 5 4 7
2Q 1998 7 51⁄4 6 27⁄1 6 6 83⁄4
1Q 1998 7 0 5 03⁄8 6 81 1⁄1 6
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T R A D E M A R K S

A d m i r a l ( C a n a d a ),  Architect, Bauknecht, Consul,
Eslabon de Lujo, Estate, Ignis, Inglis, KitchenAid,
Laden, Raybo, Resource Saver, Roper, Semer,
Speed Queen ( C a n a d a ) , Whirlpool and W h i r l p o o l
G o l d a re trademarks of Whirlpool Corporation or
its wholly or majority-owned aff i l i a t e s .

K e n m o re is a trademark of Sears, Roebuck and Co.

A c ros, Cro l l s and S u p e rm a t i c a re trademarks of 
Vi t ro S.A. de C.V.

N a rc i s s u s is a trademark of Whirlpool Narc i s s u s
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

S M C is a trademark of Shunde Whirlpool SMC
M i c rowave Products Co. Ltd.

E n e rgy Star is a service mark of the Enviro n m e n t a l
P rotection Agency, and the Department of Energ y

Habitat for Humanity is a service mark of Habitat
for Humanity International, Inc.

I N T E R N E T  A D D R E S S

Whirlpool financial information, product specifica-
tions, remodeling ideas and more are available at
the Whirlpool Corporation site on the World Wi d e
Web (www. w h i r l p o o l c o r p . c o m ) .

W H I R L P O O L  C O R P O R A T I O N  

G E N E R A L  O F F I C E S

World Headquarters and North America
2000 N. M-63, Benton Harbor, MI  49022-2692
Telephone:  616/923-5000

E U R O P E

Viale G. Borghi 27, 21025 Comerio VA, Italy
Telephone:  39 0332 759 111, Fax:  39 0332 759 347

L A T I N  A M E R I C A

Av. das Naces Unidas N. 12.995 – São Paulo – S.P.
04578-000, Brazil
Telephone:  55 11 5586-6473, Fax:  55 11 5586-6388

A S I A

16th Floor, Paliburg Plaza, 68 Yee Wo St., 
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone:  852 2881 1211, Fax:  852 2895 1693

P R O D U C T  A N D  S E R V I C E  I N F O R M A T I O N

( N O R T H  A M E R I C A )

K i t c h e n A i d brand:  800/422-1230 
W h i r l p o o l brand:  800/253-1301

S T O C K H O L D E R S ’ A N D  O T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N
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